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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Members of the St. Bernard Pansh Council
Chalmette, Louisiana

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business —type
activities, each major fund, and' the aggregate:remaining fund information of the St. Bernard Parish
Government. (the Parish) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Parish’s basic financial statements of the’ Parish’s
primary government as listed in the table of contents.

Mamlganent’s Responsibility [' or the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements. that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
€rror.

Auditors’ onsibili

Our mspanmbtk&y is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audn: in accorcianse with auditing: standards. genem.lly accepted in the United States of America and
the standmds &;m}mabic to financial andits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Ccmptmller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain réasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audzttmvmives performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the ﬁmamml statammm' The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
ass:afesmmt of the nslmof material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
'In making those risk asaesmm’ss, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s prepamtxon
ané fair prasenmtm of the financial statements in order to demgn audit procedures that are appropriate in
&;e urcmnstam;es but not for the | purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
mte:mal ccmtrol Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
&;}pmpmmmss-{xﬁ&mmtmg policies used and the reasonableness of"significant accounting estimates
made by, manag&mam, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation of the financial
statements,

'We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
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Basis for Adverse inion

The financial statements referred. to above include only the primary government of the Parish, which
consists. of all funds, organizations, institutions,-agencies, departments, and offices that comprise the
Parish’s legal entity. The financial ‘statements do not include financial data for the Parish’s legally
separate component units. Accounting principles generally accepted in.the United States of America
require financial data for the Parish’s legally séparats component units to be reported with the financial
data .of -the Parish’s primary government. The amount which- this- ~departure would affect the assets,
liabilities, net position, revenues, and expenses of the government-wide financial statements has:not been
determined.

Adverse Opinion

In our opinion, because-of the significance of the matter discussed in the “Basis for Adverse Opinion”
~ paragraph, the financial 'statéménts refeired to above do not present fairly the financial position of the
reporting entity. of the Parish as of Deceniber 31, 2013, or the changes in financial position or cash flows
thereof for the year then ended. In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, the Parish has ‘issued separate reporting entity financial statements for which
we have issued our report dated Taly 10, 2014.

Unmodi, inions

In our opiiion, the financial statements ‘referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial posmon of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information. of the Parish as of December 31,2013, and the. r&smctwc
changes in financial position and where. applicable, cash flows thereof for the -year- then ended in
accordance with accotnting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplement Information

Accounting principles-generally accepted in the United States:of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis-and budgetary comparison information on pages 4 through 15'and 60 through 62
and schedule of funding progress-on.page 63 be:presented.to: supple:hent‘ the basic financial statements.

Such’ information, although not-a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part ¢ of financial reporting. for. placing the
basic financial statements in.an appropriate operanona], economic, or hJstoncal context. We have apphed
certain limited procedures to the required: supplementary mformatlon in accordance with audmng,
standards generally accepted in. the United States of. America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about, the ‘methods of preparing- the information and. comparing the information for
consxstency with mnnagement’s responses to our mqumw, the. basm financial statements and other
orprowdeanyassurance on the information becmxsethehmtedprocedmes do notproﬁdeuswnh
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.




Other Information

Our.audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Parish’s basic financial statements. The combining non-roajor-governmental and enterprise
fund:and internal service:fund financial statements.are presented for purposes of additional analysis and
are ot a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining non-major governmental and enterprise fund and internal service fund statements are the
responsibility of management and were derived from and related directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to
the auditing procedures apphed in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain_additional
procedures, including comparing:and reconciling such information'to the underlymg accounting and other
_ records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements:themselves, and
other additional procedures:in accordance with anditing standards. generally accepted in the United States
of- America, In our opinion, the combining non-major governmental and enterprise fund and internal
service fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Goveriment Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 10, 2014,
on our consideration of the Parish’s internal control over financial reporting and_on-our. tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal contro! over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over. financial réporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in consldenng the Parish’s internal -control. over
financial reporting and compliance.

Poctlthunits + Nitonlly

New Orleans, Louisiana
July 10, 2014.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
December.31, 2013

Management's Discussion and-Analysis

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of:the St. Bernard Parish Government
(the Parish), financial performance provides an overview of the Parish's financial activities for the fiscal
'year ended December 31, 2013. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in
conjunction with additional information that is:furnished in the Parish’s basic financial stateménts and the
notes to the basic financial statements.

Financial Highlights

» The Parish’s net position balance on the government-wide basis was $595,417,205 at December 31,
2013

¢ The government-wide statement of activities reported an increase in net position of $54,122,372.
2013 general fund tax revenues increased by $1,694,306 compared to 2012.

e The:general fund reported.a deﬁclency of revenues and other financing, sources:over expenses and
other financing uses of $440,951 for a total ending fund. balance at December 31, 2013 of $2,612,641.
The general fund’s unassigned fund balance at December 31, 2013 is-$2,436,466:

o Total governmental funds reported an excess of expenses and other financing uses over revenues and
other financing sources of $24,211,340.

o Total cash and cash equivalent of governmental funds amounted to $31,479,766 at December 31,
2013, -an increase of $6,821,406 compared to December 31, 2012.

Overview.of the Financial Statéements

This discussion and analysis is:intended -to serve as an.introduction to the Parish's primary government
financial statements. The Parish's financial statements comprise three:components: 1) government-wide
financial Statements, 2) fund ﬁnanclal statements, and 3) notes to the basic financial statements. This
report also contains required supplementary information and additional supplementary information to
provide greater detail of data presented in the basic financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statemeénts are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the Parish's finances,-in a manger similar to a private-sector
business.

The:statement of net position:presents information on all of .the Parish's assets, liabilities, and deferred
‘inflows/outflows with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, ‘increases or
decreases in net position may servé as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Parish is
improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Parish's net position changed during the
year ended December 31, 2013. All.changes in net position:are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the. change occurs, regardless of thetiming of related cash flows. Thus,-revenues and




ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
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Deécember 31, 2013

-expenses are-reported in this:statement for.some items that will only resultin cash flows.in.future periods.
(e:g-earned but unused; leave for vacations).

supported by trixes and’ mtergovcrnmental revetiies: (governmental actlvmes) from. othenftmctlons thatare.
intended to recover-all or a significant portion.of:their costs through:user.fees: and charges (business:type:
activities): The- govemmentalzachwtxes of the Parish: include;general government, public:safety; pubhc-
‘works, health. and human services, culture'and recreation; urban. development and. housmg and:economic:
developinent. The:business-type activity of the; Parish includes the water and: sewerage opefations of the
"Water & Sewer Division and Water Districts(the. Division).

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that i is;used to maintain controf
OVer, resources that have been segregated for speclﬁc activities,or- objecuves The Parish, Iikc other state,
and.local governments, usés:fund-accounting-to ensure.and démonstrate. compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. Al of the funds of the Parish can be divided into.two categories::governmental -fiinds.
.and proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds, Governmental funds- are used to. account: for essentially ‘the sainé ﬁmctnons?
‘reported. as govemnment’ activities in the govermnent-vnde financial statement. However, imlike: the
government-wide .financial ‘statements, goverimental fund. -financial statements :focus -on near-term:
inflows and'outflows of spendable resources. Such information may be useful in evaluating goverriment's
financing requirements.

‘Because’ the: focug of governmental furds is more narrow thzn, thatof ‘the governmefitswide, financial
statemerits, it i useful to compare. the information 'presented for. governmental: funds' with similar
information. presented for-governmental ‘activities-in the: government—mde financial statements. By doing
so, readersmay better understand the:long-term/impact of the government's‘financing d de,clswnsl Both the
governmental fund baldnce sheet-and the governmental fund* staternent of reventues;. expandltures and.
changes in. fiind. balances - provide a reconciliation-to facilitate this comparison between. _governiental
_:funds and:governmental activities. .

‘The Parish maintains 70 individual. governmental funds. Information. is presented. sepamtely Ain the,
governmental fiind balance sheet. and. in-the: governmental fund statemenit of revenies, expenditures, . and
changes in fund’ balances for its:three major funds: the General Fund, CDBG, Disaster Fund, :and Disaster.
Recovery" Fund Data from the other. govemmental ﬁmds are coinbined under the heading “Noti-major
lGovernmental Fiinds.”

Proprietary Funds. The Parish maintains two different types of proprietary funds: Enterprise. fands are
-used to report:the:same functions' presented.as:business-type activities:in the government-wide financial
statements: 'TheParish-uses enterprise:funds to-account for its water and sewerage operations. Internal
service. funds»are an accounting device used. to- accunnilate and allocate costs. internally ‘among the
Parish’s various functions: The Parish ‘uses internal service funds to account for its self insurance
program. Separate funds are;maintained for costs related to.governmental-and business-type functions
and.activity is split accordingly-in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide:the .same type of:information as’the.government-widé financial statements;
only in:more detail.. Theproprietary fund-financial statements' provide:separate information for.the Water
‘and .Sewer Division, which. is éonsidered to be:a- major fund of the Parish: All other District funds are

5
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combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund. financial statements. The two
internal, services funds are also.combined intoa. smgle aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for
the Dlstnct funds. and the internal service ‘funds is provided in the form of combining statements
elsewhere'in the- report.

The basic: proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 22-24 of this report.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statemients. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided-in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Supplementary Information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this

‘reportalso presents.required supplementary information to demonstrate legal budgetary complmnce for
.each anor fiind for,which an.annual budget is adopted and to provide information concerning the Parish's
progress in funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees.

The combining. statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major: governmental, proprietary and
internal service funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information.
Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages 68-81 of this report.



ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
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December 31,2013
‘Government-wide Financial Analysis

As.noted previously,.nét position may serve-over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial,
position. The Parish's assets exceeded liabilitiés by $595,417, 205 at December 31, 2013.

Table 1
Net Position
December 31, 2013 and 2012
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
‘ 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Curentandotherassets ~ §:  7LS98,175 § 66615530 § 22538614 § 19017398 S 94,136,789 § 85,632,928
Capital assets 186,140,491 - 380,089,536 204,966,155 192,896,423 591,106,646 572,985,959
Total asvets 457,738,666 446,705,066 227,504,769 211,913,821 685243435 658,618,887
Long-term liabilities 39,249,239 44348242 1,572,335 10,350,459 46821574 154,698,701
Other ligbilities ' 40,089,532 58,738,013 2,915,124 3,887,340 43,004,656 162,625,353
Total lisbilities 7933871 103,086,255 10,487,459 14,237,799 £9,826.230 117,324,054
Net position:
Invested of capital assets,-
net of related debt 350,256,061 344,112,498 204,966,155 192,896,423 555222216 537,008,921
Restricted 9470377 7,329,208 857,133 748,861 10,327,510 8,078,069
Unrestricted (deficit) 18,673,457 (7,822,895) 11,194,022 4,030,738 29867479 . (3792,157)
Totalnetpositon § 378,399,895 § 343618811 § 217017310 § 197676022 § 595417205 § 541,294,833

The Parish's stateient of net’position reflects its investment in capital assets, land, construction:in-
progress, infrastructure, buildings, and equipment, less any related debt outstanding used to. acquire those
assets in the amount.of $555.2 million at December 31, 2013. The Parish uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the
Parish's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided by other sources; since the capital assets themselves cannot be
used to liquidate these liabilities.

Debt service funds have accumulated $1,232,224 at December 31, 2013 to provide for the servicing of
annual interest and principal payments on bonds and are - classnfied in ‘restricted net posmon The
unrestricted net:position increased by $33,659,636, which is primarily due to the: change in net position
described below.
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Governmental Activities
Table 2
Changes in Net Positlon
December 31, 2013 and 2012
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
2013 2012 2013 2012 2003 2012
.Revennes:
Program revenues: .
Charges far services s 4799254 § 3886902 § 5748284 5818753 § 10547538 § 9,705,655
Operating grants and contributions 123,905,810 17,562,703 12,550 2,966,919 23 918,360 20,529,622
Capital grants and contributions 55,330,827 84,179,047 5,690,363 40,502,738 61,021,190 124,681,785
General revenues: i
Ad valorem taxes 12,941,340 7,658,899 - - 12,941,340 7,658,899
Sales taxes 15,844,744 13,446,184 3,961,184 . 3338375 19,805,928 16,784,559
Other taxes 1,462:117 1,430,751 - - 1,462,117 1,430,751
Unrestricted grants and
investment earnings 195,208 108213 37,106 36,852 232314 145,065
Loss on disposal of asssts (149,742) (6.,539,142) - - (149,742) (6,535,142)
Forgiveness of debt 5,403,510 - - - 5,403,510 -
Other general revenues _1,168627 647,605 330,835 (2,358.661) 1,499 462 (1,711,056)
Total revenues 120,901,695 122,381,162 15,780,322 50,304 976 136682017 172,686,138
Program expenses:
General government 30,485,143 52,204,303 - - 30,485,143 52,204,303
Public safety 10,548,513 9,231,076 - - 10,548,513 9,231,076
Public works 19,434,223 20,700,870 - - 19,434,223 20,700,870
Culture and recreation 2,889,701 2475372 - - 2,889,701 2475372
Health and welfire 6,692,893 6,322,104 - - 6,692,893 6,322,104
Interest an long-term debt 1,860,282 580,332 494,988 756,740 T 2355270 1337072
"Water and sewer - . 10,153 902° 10,195,851 10,153.902 10,195,851
Total expenses 71,910,755 91,514,057 10,648,890 10,952,591 82,559,645 102 466 648
Net (expense) revenmo before -
transfers 48,990,940 30,867,105 5,131,432 39,352,385 54122372 70,219,490
Transfers In (Out) 14,209, 85 (33,450,269) 14,209 856 33,450,269 - .
Change in Net Position 34,781,084 (2,583,164) 19,341,288 72,802,654 54,122372 70,219,490
Net Position - beginning 343,618,811 346,201,975 197,676,022 _M 541,294,833 471,075,343
Net Position - ending ' $__ 378399895 5 343618811 § 217017310 8 _ 197676022 595,417,205 541,294,833

"Totaljrevenue ﬁmreased by $36,004,121 or 20.9% from $172,686,138 in 2012 to $136,682,017 in-2013.

This decrease ‘leqprimmly , attributable to the decrease in capltal grants and contributions of $63,660,595
in zmz | This decrease-was partially offset by the increase in operating grants and contributions of
'$3‘3‘SS 73% in 2013, an increase in ad valorem taxes of $5,282,441, and forgiveness of. debt of
$5,403,510:

Total expenses were $82,559,645 in 2013, a decrease of $19,907,003, or 19.4%, compared to
$102,466,648 in 2012. General govemment expense decreased $21,719,160 or 41.6% from $52,204,303
in 2012 to $30,485,143 in 2013 primarily ‘due to decreases in Community Development Block Grant
expenditures. Public safety expense increased $1,317,437 or 14.3%. from $9,231,076 in 2012 to

$10,548,513 in 2013 due primarily to increased fire related expenditures. Public works expénse.

decreased $1,266,647 or 6.1% from $20,700,870 in 2012 to $19,434,223 in 2013.
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds
Governmental Funds

"The focus of the Parish’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term _inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resources.. Such information is useful in assessing the Parish’s financing
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s
net resources available for discretionary .use as they represent the portion of fund balance which has not
yet been.limited spending to-use for a'particular purpose by either an external party, the Parish itself, or
group or individual that bas been delegated authority to assign resources for use for particular purposes by
the Parish’s Council.

At December 31, 2013, the Parish’s governmental funds reported a combined fund balances of
$15,510,530, an increase of $24,211,340 in comparison with the prior year. Included in this.amousit is a
deficit of $3,059,235 which constitutes unassigned fund balance. The remainder of the fund balance.is
either nonspendable, restricted, committed, or assigned to indicate that it is 1) not in spendable form
($198,734), 2) restricted for particular purposes ($9,470,377), 3) committed for particular purposes
($1,803,029), or 4) assigned for particular purposes ($7,097,625).

Proprietary Funds

The St. Bernard Parish.Government’s proprietary funds provide the same type:of information found in the
government-wide financial staterents, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the Water and Sewer Division and the Districts at the énd of the year
amounted to $11,194,022.

General Fund

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Parish. During the year ended. December 31, 2013, the -

general find’s fund balance decreased by $440,951.from $3,053,592 to $2,612,641. Key factors relative
to this change are as follows:

e Total revenues increased by $2,691,325 from 2012 to 2013. Federal grant revenue increased by
$1,008,331 as compared to the prior year. Sales tax revenues increased by $1,798,920 during the year
ended December 31, 2013.

» Expenditures decreased in 2013 to $14,942,335 compared to '$15,076,968 in 2012, a. decrease of
$134,633, which represents a 0.9% decrease:in expenditures.

»  Other financing sources (uses), net; totaled $5,391,991 in 2013 representing a decrease of $1,942,343
or 26.5% in comparison to 2012,

o Charges for services decreased by $240,381 or 16.4% compared to 2012 due-primarily to one time:

revenue of $172 000 during the year ended December 31, 2012.
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o Taxes increased:by:$1,694;306 or 13:9%as compared to 2012 primarily due'to-an‘increase in'sales tax:

collections of:17.8%.. Property tax.revenie: .decreased $126 446 during the: year ended December 31,
2013 due to one:time collection of past-dué property tax amounts:in-2012..

o Other;stats funds decreased $200,705 or'87.5% due to one-timeé funding in 2012.

e Miscellaneous:and:cther revenues increased‘from: -$256,586°in.2012:t0- $624,396 in:2013, an-incréase

of :$367, 810 or 144.0% due:to the receipt ofia one time: insurance: settlement during:the year-ended
December 31 2013.

The:accomipanyitig table shiows the amiount (jii. thoiisands) of general fiind revenues by source. for 2013
and 2012. ‘

' Increase: )

‘Revenues and Other 2013 %of (Decrease) 2012 %of.
Financing Sources Actual Tl Over 2012 Actnal Total
Taxes $ 13,891,110 B83% § 1694306 $ 12,19%,504 7090%

Licérises and permits 1206237 6.06 57,591 1,148,646 6:68
Intergovernmental 2944663 14.80 811,999 2,132,664 12.40
Charges for:services 1,226,969 6.17 (240381) 1 467,350 853
Miscellaneous and other 6243% 3.14 367,810 256,586 1.50;
$ 1989375 100.0% $ 2691325 §_ 17202050 100.0%

The accompanying® table shows the amount:(in thousands) of general fund expenditures by. source. for
12013 and 2012.

Increase
2013 | % of (Decrease) 2 % of

Expenditures Actual, “Total Ovér 2012 Actual . Total
General goverment $ 1‘4,11"’4,750 6941% -$ 184, 022 $ 13930728 '62.516%'
Health and welfire - — — B —
Capital'outlay m,sss 407 (318,655) 1,146,240 511
Opefatifig trensfers out, net 5,391,991 26.52 {(1,%42,343) 7334334 3274

' $_203343%  __ 1000% A.s, Q076976 . § 2241132 . 100.0%
‘CDBG'Fund

This special revenue fund is -used to account.for funding from:the Department of Housing and Urban
'Development,(HUD), primarily CDBG funding for Hurricanes: Katrina, Rita, and Gustav reconstruction.
The CDBG ‘grants; are reimbursement.basis grants where’ expendttures and related revenues:have: been
accrued. The' deficit in the: CDBG Disaster fund .at December 31, 2013 of $2,626 137 is parha.lly

attributableto $2;486,566 of reventie that has-been deferred:and will be.collected by:the Parish in 2014

and cash advances received for which expenditures will-be incurred in firture- years.. Revenue: amounted
to; $9,918 489 in 2013 compared to’ $21,982 752.in 2012, while. expendltures totaled’ $10, 608; 114iin 2013
compared to $21 ,834,201 in'2012. 'Revenues and: ‘expenditures.for Hurricanes Katrina, Rits and Gustav.in
the. CDBG Disaster.fund are decreasing as funding:for the emergencies comes to-an end and-projects are
-closed out:

10



ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

December 31, 2013

Disaster Recovery Fund

The Disaster Recovery Fundprimarily accounts for grants received as a result of Hurricanes Katrina, Rita
and Gustav from the Federal government. FEMA, as-authorized by the. Stafford Act, assists individuals,
as well as, state-and local governments with response to and recovery from disasters. The FEMA grants
are reimbiirsement basis, grants where eXpenditires and related revenues have been accrued. The deficit in
the Disaster Recovery fund at December 31, 2013 of $2,774,215:is partially attributable to $6,810,124 of
revenue: that has been deferred and will be collected by the Parish in 2014 and cash advances received for
which expenditures will be incurred in future years. Revenue amounted to $50,337,469 in 2013
compared to $44,208, 933 in 2012, while expenditures totaled $13,370,632 in 2013 compared to
$52,348,479in 2012. Revenues and expendltures for Hurricanes Katrina, Rita and Gustav in.the FEMA
fund are decreasing as funding for the emergencies comes to an end and projects are closed out.

Special Revenue Funds — Non-major

The Non-Major Special Revenue funds-are used to account for the recording of special purpose revenues
and grants. Total fund balance for the Non-Major Special Revenue funds was $9,032,646 at December
31, 2013, which was.a $3,217,205. increase compared to the prior year fund balance.of $5,815,441.
Revenues during the year ended December 31, 2013 increased by $8,034,893 primarily due to increased
property tax revenues of $5,503,783 and mcreased federal grant funding in public works of $1,224,178.
Expendlmres during the year énded Decernber 31, 2013 increased by $2,248,345 as a result of an increase
in capital outlay expenses in recreation and hazard mitigation during-2013.

Debt Service Funds

The Debt Service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of,
general long-term debt prificipal, interest, and related costs. Total fund balance for the Debt Service
Funds was $1,232,224 at December 31, 2013, which was a $107,640 increase compared to'the prior year
balance-of $1,124,584. Expenditures-during’ the year ended December 31, 2013 increased by $826,231
primarily as a result-of interest and fiscal costs:costs related to the 2012 Sales Tax Refunding Bonds.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, the Parish issued the 2012 Sales Tax Refunding bonds for-

$33,885,000 and used the proceeds to partialty refund the 2003 Sales Tax Bonds and the 2004 Sales Tax
Bonds.

Capital Project Funds'

The Capital -Projects funds are used:to account for all resources and expenditures in connection with the
acquisition of capital facilities and'repair and maintenance projects other than those accounted for in the
recovery funds: relating to FEMA and CDBG. Total fund balance for the Capital Project Funds was
$8,033,971, at December 31, 2013, a decreas¢ of $416,578 from .the prior year. Capltal projects fund
expenditures during 2013 totaled $208,397; an increase of $108,397 from the:prior year. One-time
transfers of $755,460 from the capital projects-funds to the general fund occurred, during the year ended
December 31,2012, which attributed to thie decrease in trasisférs out of $718,366.

11



ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

December 31, 2013 '

Enterprise Funds

The Enterprise funds are used to-account for operations of the water and sewer facilities of the Parish.
Total net position. for the Enterprise Funds was $216,160,177. at December 31, 2013, an increase of
$19,233,016 from the prior year due to increased capital projects funding for rebuilding of the Parish’s
water and sewer facilities.  Total operating revenues decreased $86,202 or 1.51% to $5,624,489 for the
year ended December 31, 2013. Total opemtmg expenses increased $138,664 or 1.42% to $9,389,026 for
the year ended December-31, 2013. The increase in operating expenses is pnmanly due to additional
deprec!atlon expense of $651,652 and a decrease of $278,466 .in contractual services, supplies, and
materials.

Non-operating revenues and expenses decreased $34,215,234 or 78.65% to $9,287,697 for the year ended
Deceniber 31, 2013. The decrease in non operating revenues' is due to decreased federal funding of
$34,812,375 awarded ‘in prior.years related to reconstruction of Sewer and Water facilities. Sales tax
revenues increased by $622,809 or 18.7% to -$3,961,184 for the year ended December 31, 2013.
Transfers in, net decreased from the prior year due to the transfer of $32,699,453 from the proceeds of the
2012 Sales Tax refunding bond that occurred in'2012.

Internal Service Funds

The mtemnal service funds are ‘used to account for the risk management services provided throughout the
Parish. Total net position- for the Internal Service Funds was a deficit of $751,190, at December 31,
2013, a decrease of $239;323 from the prior year. Premium revenue increased by $88,315 from-
$1, 180 ,567 to $1,268 882 during the year ended December 31, 2013. Total operating expenses decreased
by. $603,546 from $2;112,004 to $1, 508,458 during the year ended December 31, 2013.

12




ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Management’s. Discussion and -Analysis

December 31,2013

General Fund Budgetary Highlights:

Variances. between'general fund:amended budget and actual are delineated:in the:schedule below. Total
revenues are;$5.; 2 thillion or : 13.8%less than budgeted due:to the:accounting treatment of the Certificates
of Indebtedness, as, well as the uansfer of lots from Louisiana Road Home Corporauon dfb/a as Louisiana
Land Trust. Actual expenditures were2.3% less than budgeted

2013
Positive
, _Bidget- Actial _ _ (Nepative)
Revennes ; .
Taxes $ 14051750 $  13,89L,110 $ (160;640)
Licenses:and pefmits. 1:202,850, 1,206,237 C 3387
Intergovernmental 8,170,432 2,944,663 (5:225,769)
Charges for services: 1,177,800 1,226,969 49,169,
Miscellaneous- .5213600. 624,396 102,796
Total Revenues 25,124,432 - 19,893375 (5:231,057)
Expenditures 15,289,975 14,942,335 347,640
.Other Finanéing Sources (Uses), net (2,484,083) . (5,391,991) (2,907.908)
‘Net Change in Fond Balance $ 7350374 & (440,951) §  (1,191325)
Capital Assets .
Capital assets at December-31, 2013/and 2012.are as:follows (net of depreciation):
. 2013 . 2012
Land $ 19,466,837 $  19/466:837
Construction in progress 74,332,473 75,642,064
Bmldmgs, improvements, and eqmpment 189,214,066 193,663,061
Other 6,952:550 7,830,909
Inffastructure gssei$ 301,140,720 276,383,088

$ 591, 1063646 $ 572,985,959

Hurricane Katrina and'the related: ﬂoodmg caused physical damage to the Parish’s-capital assets..As.a
result, oertam assets' weretdestroyed and other assets, specifically buildings, require-restoration efforts to
restore thelr service ‘utility. Some assets have been demohshed ;and are bemg replaced. Buildings,
mprovements, equlpment, other, and mfrastrucmre assets’ have lbeen reduced in value as a result of
demolition, damage, or. depreciation.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
December 31, 2013

Debt Administration

Total cutstanding debt at December 31, 2013 totaled $50,481,000, ‘which is secured by specific revenue
sources (property or sales taxes). Dunng 2013, the Parish issued- $9,356 000 of Limited Tax Certificates
of Indebtedness, Series 2013.

Outstanding Debt’
2013 2012

2003 Sales Tax bonds $ - $ 280,000
2012 Sales Tax Refunding bonds 33,885,000 33,885,000
2004 Sales Tax bonds 2,935,000 5,255,000
2008 Sales Tax Refunding bonds 4,305,000 4,920,000

Total bonds 41,125,000 44,340,000
Revenue-Anticipation Note o= 60,000
Certificates of Indebtedness 9,356,000 -
CDL Loan - 5,000,000

‘Total oustanding debt $ 50,481,000 § 49,400,000

The following is a summary of debt transactions:

Baldnce at January 1, 2013 $ 49,400,000
New issues 9,356,000
Payments | (3,275,000)
Forgiveness of debt (5,000,000)
Balance at December.31, 2013 =$ 50,481,000

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 10 percent of
its total assessed:valuation. The current debt limitation for general obligation debt for the Parish is in
excess of the Parish’s outstanding general obligation debt.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

The Parish’s primary recurring funding source is Sales Tax. In 2013, actual Sales Tax collections were
$19,805,928.(1.2%) in excess of the originally budgeted amount. The Parish believes that there will be an
increase in Sales Tax revenues.in 2014 over 2013 and thereafter due to continually improving economic
conditions and- the post-storm related recovery. Anticipation is such that by the end of 2014, it is
estimated-that the Pansh will be substantially complete in its-storm related récovery efforts that will total
in-excess of $1 ‘billion. Significant Parish-wide infrastructuré repairs, hazard mitigation measures, the
aggressive marketing of lots made vacant by Hurricane Katrina, exceptionally-rated public school system,
state of the art recreational facilities, low crime rate, and other. factors will continue to' make the Parish'an
attractive: community that shouldbolster; its populataon rate and therefore realize increases in collections
of Sales Takes and various'other taxes. A new state.of the art Hospital should continue to.grow the area’s
medical care services and offer competitive jjob- opportunities. The Parish continues to apply for federal
and-state grants in order to improve the quality of life for its. residents. Examples. of this include federal
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Decembelj 31,2013

and state grants-that will fund a lighted walking: path at the Val Reiss Complex, connecting recreational
bicycle lanes, and Central Wetlands access.

Over the last year or two, the Parish has seen a significant i increase in the numbers of movies being

- filmed.

The Parish hosts many fdirs and festivals with .the annual Knights of COlumbus.Crawﬁéh Festival -itself
bringing-in over 100,000 patrons. The eastern end of the Parish is-a favorite saltwater fishing destination
for the entire Greater, New. Orleans metropolitan area.

Based,on the factors stated above‘and the continued growth in population, Parish management anticipates
‘an increase in its taxable base’and continiity and growth in the services offered to its residents.

Requests for Information

This: financial feport is designed to provide a’general overview of the Parish's finances for all those with
an interest in the govérnment's finances. Questions conceming any of the information provided in.this
repoit or requests for additional financial information may be addressed to the Department of Finance, St.
‘Bernard Parish, 8201 W. Judge Perez Drive, Chalmette, Louisiana70043.
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. Statement A
ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

Statement of Net Position
ecem) 2013

Governmental Business Type

Activities Activities Total
Assets: ’

Cash and cash equivalents $ 33550215 § 4748123 § 38298338

Investments 864,327 . 864,327

Investments - land held for sale 5,326,500 - 5,326,500

Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles)

Sales and use taxes ’ 2,306,121 . 2,306,121
Ad valorem taxes 12,263,645 - 12,263,645
Cable franchise fees 99,097 - 99,097
Custorner - 150,423 150,423
Intergovernmental 18,006,253 - 18,006,253
Otker. ' 1,690,983 4 1,690,987

Unbilled chargss ' - 345,364 345,364

Internal balances (2,721,617) 2,721,617 -

‘Prepaids 202,937 78,429 281,366

Inventory - 367,950 367,950

Restricted assets - cash and cash equivalents - 12,806,176 .12,806,176

Restricted assets - receivables - 576,528 576,528

.Other asséts. 9,714 744,000 753,714

Capital assets; net of depreciation 386,140,491 204,966,155 591,106,646

Total asséts $ 457,738,666 § 227,504,769 § 685243435
Liabilities: ‘

Accounts payables and accrued linbilities $ 16376944 § 492771 § 16,869,715

Claims payable- ‘ 4,121,020 587,474 4/708,494

Retainago payable 8,050,192 , - 8,050,192

"Salaries and payroil deductions payable-. 1,658,955 118,593 1,777,548

Payable from restricted assets - 1,220,560 1,220,560

Accrued interest payable 526,421 157,703 684,124

Uneamed revenue ' - 338,023 338,023

Certificates of mdebtedness 9,356,000 - 9,356,000

Long-term non-current liabilities
Due within ane yesr 1,870,020 3,108,455 4,978,475
Due in more than onc year 37,379,219 4,463,380 41,843,099

"Total liabilities $ 79338771 § 10487459 §  89,826230
Net Position:. )

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt $ 350,256,061 $ 204966155 § 555222216

Restricted for:

" Capital projects 452,609 - 452,609
Debt service 1,232,224 353,165 1,585,389
Other purposes 7,785,544 503,968 8,289,512

Unrestricted 18,673,457 11,194,022 29,867,479

Total net position $ 378,399895 § 217,017,310 § 595417205

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Opersting Capital .
Charges Grants Grants ‘Net (Expense) Reveaue and Chaoges in Net Position
for aud Coatrib- and Contrib- Governmental- Business-type
Fanctions/Programs Expenses. Services utions utions Activities Activities Total
Governmental Activities:
General govermment
Judicial s T e H 49,271 $ - $ - H {557,851) H - H (557,851)
Other generul government 29,878,021 2,492,129 15,443,154 54,182,911 42,240,173 - 42240173
Public Safety 10,548,513 13,430 1,935,549 - (8,599,534) - (8.599,534)
Public works ~ 19,434,223 88,115 624,751 1,147,916 (17,573,441). - {17,573,441)
Culturo and recreatian. 2,889,701 2,156,309 252,892 - (480,500) - (480,500)
Health and welfare 6,692,893 - 5,645,464 - (1,043,429) - (1,043,429)
Interest on long-term debt 1,860,282 - - - (1,860,282) - (1,860,282)
Total governmental activitics 71,910,755 . 4,799,254 23,905,810 55,330,827 12,125,136 - 12,125,136
Bustness-Typé Activities: ‘ ' .
Watsr asid sowor 10,153,902 5,748,284 12,550 5,690,363 - 1,297,295 1,297,295
Interest on fong-term debt 494,988 - - - . (494,988) (494,988)
Total business-type activities 10,648,890 $,748.284 12,550 5,690,363 - 802,307 802307
Total $ 82359645 .S 10,547,538 . $ 23918360 5 __ 61021.190 H 12,125,136 H 802,307 s 12,927,443
Genernl revences - -
Taxes: _ .
Ad valorem (property) tices 12,941,340 - 12,941,340
Sales and use tves 15,844.144‘ 3,961,184 15,805,928
Ssverance 971,328 - 971328
B telephone 378,840 - 378,840
Other 111,949 - 111,949
Interest and fnvestment eamings 195208 37,106 232314
Other general revenues (expenses) 1,168,627 330,835 1,499,462
Loss on disposal of capital assets (149,742) - (149,742)
Cancellation of debt 5,403,510 5,403,510
Total general revenuss 36,865,804 . 4,329,125 41,194,929
Transfer in (out) (14,209,856 14,209,856 -
Changes in net position 34,‘18[,084 19,341,288 54,122372
.Net pesition, beginning of year 343 618,811 197,676,022 541,294,833
Net position, end of year $ 378,399,895 $__217,017310 S 595417205

ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

-Statement of Activities

For the year ended December 31, 2013

Statement B

Ses accompanying notes to financial statementy.
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Total assats

Statement C

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES .
Accounts payabls
Retainage payable

Due to other funds

Shart-term certificates of indebtednesy

Total lisbilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS

Nonspendable emounts:
Prepaid jtems
Restricted for:
pge o0
Debt service
Federal programs
Council on aging

Total fund balaces

Tota! liabilities, defasred inflows, &nd fimd balances

See eccompanying notes t financial statements.

Govenunsnial Funds - Balancs Sheet’
Degomber 31,2013
Non-Major
ngernl CDBG Disastor Disaster Governmenia!
Fund Fund Recovery Fund Funds- Total
$ 4180606 § 122278 S 7,487,436  § 19689446 § 31479,766
5,326,500 - - - 5,326,500
1,729,591 . - 576,530 2,306,121
804,293 - - 11,459,352 12,263,645
99,097 - - . 99,097
1,393,626 3,760,961 11,764,277 1,087,389 118,006,253
395,967 - - 1,299,016 1,690,983
9,104,788 - 14,025,396 3,825,691 26,955,875
84,990 - - 113,744 198,734
9714 - - - 9,714
$ 23125172 § -3883239 0§ 33297109  § 380Sii68 $ 98336688
s 1;710.730' $ 2255110 § 9055049 § 3420121 $ 16,441,010
20669 171027 6,097,437 21812 8,050,192
528,595- - - 839,236 1,367,831
8,760,076 58,026 14,088,714 7,057,585 29,964,401
.3,150,000 - - 6,206 000 9356 ,000
14,170,070 4023410 29,241,200 17,744,754 65,179,434
6,342,461 2,486 566 6,810,124. 2,007,573 17,646,724
84,990 - - 113,744 198,734
91,185 - - - 91,185
= - - 1132224 1232204
- - - 4,324,697 4,324,697
- - - 383,237 383,237
- - - 795290 795,290
- - - 385,777 385,777
- - - 1,805,358 1,805,338
- - - 452,609 452,609
- - - 1,803,029 1,803,029
- - - 138,907 138507
- - - 1,180,614 1,180,614
- - - 5,778,104 5,778,104
2,436,466 RE&677) (2,774215) (94,749) (3,059.235)
2,612,641 (2,626,737) . (2,774,215) 18,298 841 15,510,530
$ 23125172 § 3883239 § 33277109  $ 38051168 98336688




Statement D

ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

Total fund balances — governmental fimds

The cost of capital essets (land, buildings, furniture and equipment) purchased or

constructed is reparted as an expenditure in goveinmeiital funds. The Statement of Net
Position includes those capital ssscts among the assets of the Parish as a whole. The
eostofdmseasm:sanoawdwutheuesnmaﬁduscﬁﬂhm(udcpmanm
expense)toﬂnevmmpmymmdnpoﬂ:dasgovanmmtalacﬁvmmthz
Statement - of "Activities. Because depreciation expeiise does not affect financial

resonrces, it is not reported in governmenta! funds.
Cost of capital sssets
Accumolated depreciation

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources
amd are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Interest expense is accrued at yrar-end in the govemment-wide financial statements,
"but is recarded only if due’ andpayabbunthagovmmmmlﬁmﬂﬁnmalmmmems

Long-term liabilities consist of:
Bonds payabie, net of premium/discount

Net other post-employment benefit abligation
Compensated absences

Internal sexvice funds are used by management to charge the costs of
certain activities to individual funds. The asscts and liabilitics of the
internal service funds are inclnded in the govemmentat activities in the
statement of net position.

“Net position — govermmental activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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§ 15510530

$ 438989345
(52,848,854) 386,140,491
17,646,724
(526,421)

$  (35894,144)
(1,799,417) '
(1,555,678) (39,249,239)
(1,122,190)

$ 378,399,895
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REVENUES
Tuxes
Ad valorem
Sales ind Usn
Othes txxes, penaliies, infevess, ete.
Intergovemmental
Feders} grants
State fimds
Stats rovean tharing (net)
Other ’

pumgwmwm
; Usa of money and property
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Genenl government

Tudieiny

Other genens! govermnent
Public seftay
Pubfia works
Culture ad recreation
Eiealth and welare
‘Debt service

Princim)

_ Intesess end flscal chorgss

Capital outtyy

Total expenditures
(DIFICIENCY) O¥ REVENTUES
OVER EXFENDITORES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Openating trangfery In
Operating transfecy out
Total other financing sources (tws)
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENURS
AND OTHER SOURCES OVER
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES
FUND BALANCES - BEGRNNING OF YEAR

¥UND BALANCES - END OF YEAR

See Panying notex to firancial etements,

s

Statement E

Noo-major

Fund Fund Recovery Fund Funds Total
L 931,450 - s - 11,893,04) 12,024,501
11,853,558 - - 3,961,186 15,844,744
1.076,092 - - 386,015 1,482,117
1206237 - - - YAy 1,260,407
2,909,087 9,918,447 50,336,132 4124374 77,288,240
6 - - 2.0 35,068
- 2’7 - 1337 2227474 2,257,549
1,226,569 - - 2328878 3,555,347
- - - 181,524 181,524
. uo - - . 3o
. 6366 . 42 - 363,493 987,103
19393375 918,485 37,469 35,533,397 115,684930
. - - 8,778 8,775
14,114,750 1,737,543 6,069,250 1921618 25,843,161
- - - 9,718,508 9,718,558
. - - 9,189,794 9,159,794
. . - 1,913,604 1.913,60¢
- . - 6,625,817 6,625,617
. - - 280,000 220,000
. . - 1,322,566 1,322,566
827,588 3,870,574 7301382 5282081 2281619
14902335 10,608,114 13370632 382,653 7126,734
4,951,040 {689.625) IEISERIT (2,807,056) 38.421,196
5230833 - mas2 6,168,369 1169952
10, {138) (14,825304) (453,346) (25,901, 808)
{5391,991) 039 {14,533,052) 571530 (14209056)
(a10,931) (689,761) 247,785 2,908,267 24211,340
3,053,592 (1,536,976) (33,203,000) 15390574 (,%0810)
3 yngm S gesTn 8 gras) 3 18298641 S 15,310,530




Total net chenges in fund balances —~ governmental funds

-Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different.

‘because:

Govemnmental filrids report capital outlays as expenditures. However in the statement of.
“activities te.costs of those assets are-allocated over their estimated usefl lives and are’
reported as depreciation expense. This represents the amount that’capital outlays
exceeded depreciation expense and the loss on disposals in the current period..

The issuance of long-term- debt (e.g. bonds) provide cuitent; financial resources to
govemnmental funds, while the repayment of the- ptmclpal of.lung-tnrm debt consumes
tbeclmmtﬁnancmlmm of - governmental -funds. Nerﬂmumsashon, however,
hnsmyeffectmnetposmon. 'I‘hl.smmmt:stheneteﬂ‘ectofthmdxﬁ‘ermmmthe
uemamoflong-tumdzbt.

Bond principsl payments

‘Amortization of bond premium

Change in revenue eccruals - Under modified accrual basis of ‘accounting, revenues are
not recognized unless they are deemed "aveilable” to finance the expenditires of the
current period. Accmalbasmreoog:.luonlsnmhmmdtoavnilabﬂny,sowm
.tcvenmnotmﬂnhlefmspendmgmmognmdmﬂnmmym

Change in other accrued expenses

Change in accrual basis recognition of interest expenditures

Compensated absences are recorded ‘in the govemmental funds when: paid, but are

recarded: in the: statement .of activities when eamed  This represents-ths amowmnt’ of

compensahdabsmoesmnedthmamededmmpmdmmemwm

The charge in the net other post:employinent benefit obligation reported in thé
statement of . activities dozs not require the-use of. current financial resources and,
therefare, is not reported as an expendiire in the governmentat funds.

Cancellation of debt (principal end accrued interest) by lender (CDL loan)

The net revemue of certain activities of internal service fimds is reported with
Change in net position of governmental activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Statement F

$ 24211340

6,050,955

280,000
194,125

(231,381)
(379,992)

(157,7249)

(138,224

(236,398)

5,403,510

{214,627)
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Statement H

Business-type Activitics - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Warer Other Activities
and Sewer Edterpriso Intemal
Division . Funds Total . __8ervice Funds
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services H 5533584 8 - 8 5533584 $ 1,268,882
Other operating revenuss 90,908 - 190,905 -
Total operating révenves 5,624 489 . - 5,624,489 /1,268,882
OPERATING EXPENSES . L
Personal sarvices and related benefity 2,291,273 - 12291273 182,194
Utilities 1,030,890 . 1,030,890 -
Contractual services, supplies, and materials 506,255 - 506,255 -
Professional services 46910 - 46910 | 49,757
Innumence premiums - - “ 1272323
Insurance: and claims expense 774,936 - 774,936 -
Degpreciation amd amortization 5,036,938 - 5,036,938 -
.Other expanses 201,924 - ‘201824 4,184
Total operating expenses 9,889,026 - 9 889,026 1,508,458
Oporating inoome (loss) (4,264,537 - {4,264,537) (239,576)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) ) .
Sales tax 3,961,184, - 3,961,184 -
Interest eamnings: o
Reswicted assets 1,106 - 1,106 .
Current assets 36,000 . 36,000 .
Intarest expense znd bank fees {494,988) - (454,988) 253
Federul and state grants 5702913 - 5,702913 -
Other nonoperating revemues and expenses, net 239,930 - 239,930 -
Dedpotions from taxes {158 448) - (158,448) -
Total non-operating revennes (expenses) 9,287,697 - 9,287,697 253
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
BEFORE TRANSFERS 5,023,160 - 5,023,160 (239,323
Trmsfers in 18,173,966 - 18,173,966 -
Transfers out (3,964,110) - (3,964,110) -
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 19,233,016 - 19,233,016 239,33)
NET POSITION: }
BEGINNING OF YEAR 196,927,161 353,165 19
END OF YEAR $ 216160177 $ 353,165 H {151,190)
Adjustment for the et éffect of the current year activity between
the internal service fimdy and enterprise funds 108272
Changes in net position of business-rype activities $ 193

Sce sccompanying notes to financisl stataments.




ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT .
Stetement of Cosh Flows |
For the year ended December 31.2013
B  Ativities - ise Funds G 1
Wetsr . Other Activities
and Sewer, Brterprise Internal
Division Punds Tota) Servios Punds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cath recelved from cusiomes and users’ § 6261912 3 - s 6261912 § 12588
Cash paid to sippliers of goods or services 3,722,768) - 3.722,768) (937,962)
Cash paid to ermployoes —(2405,130) — 240510 -
Nei cash provided by operating activitics 134014 - 134014 330520
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES .
Transfirs in | met 14,209,856 - 14,209,856 -
‘Orber pon-operating reyemm 315,442 - -315,442 -
- Net payments to other fands (264,625) _ - (264,625) - (214,700)
Net azsh provided by (used in) non-capital financing sctivitica 1426067 - 1426067 4.7
mmmmmﬁummmmncmcmrwm
Capital grams 5,702,913 - 5,702,513 -
Sales tax reveipts 3802571 - 3,802,571 -
Principal payceats on eutstrnding bonds (2.935,000) - (2,535,000) -
Interest expenso an eutstmding bonds (329,452) - (329,492) -
. Purchssa of eapital sssety (17,182,182) - {17,182,182) -
Net cash used in capital end relared financing ectivities {10,941,190) . - 10.941;1 -
CASH FL.OWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
. Proceeds from tals of fyvestments - - - @3)
Interest received 1,102 - 1,102 253
Net cash provided by capital and related finansing activities 1,102 - 1,102 -
NET INCRERASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3454599 - 3,454,599 116,220
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
BEGINNING OF YEAR 13,214,000 353,165 13,567,255 2,485,674
END OF YEAR S 16668689 8 353,065 § 17021854 § 2602394
BECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASR
USED IN OPERATING ACTTVITIES:
Opersting loxs $  (4264537) - 4264537y 8 (239,576)
- Adjustments to recancils eperating 1031 to
Deprecistion 5,006,938 - 5,036,938 -
D n cusy £eivab 265,310 - 265,810 -
Decreaso in unbifled chorges 7,810 - 1,810 -
Increase in prepeids (5733) - (5,333) 4,308
Decrease in umnu-y 98,505 - 93,905 -
Decredss in acommis payable and scemed expenses (1,264,L67) - (1,264,167) 563,773
Desrensa in maltries payable 105,219). - * (105,215) 1,915
Inorense in custnmer depoaits 28,780 - 25,780 -
Iricrenss in uncamad revenus 338,029, - 338,023 -
Net oash provided by opersting setivities s 134014 -8 134014 8 330920

Sea sccoenpanying notes to financial stxtements.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December 31, 2013

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Parish of St. Bernard is a local governmental subdivision which operates under a home rule charter,
under.the authority of the. Louisiana revised Statutes 33:1395 through 33:1395!6. The Home Rule Charter

provides for-a “president-council” form of government which:consists of an elected ‘council representing

the legislative branch of the government and an-elected president headmg the executive branch.

The basic financial statements of the St. Bernard Parish Government (the Parish) have been prepared in
conformity ‘with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) for local governmental units as
prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The most significant accounting
and reporting policies of the Parish are described in the following notes to the basic financial statemerits.

ggsis of Presentation — Financial Reporting Entity

The accompanying financial statements include financial statements for the Parish and certain legally
sepafate: organizations in accordance with Governmental Accountmg Standards Board
(GASB)'Codification:Section-2100. Organizations are included:if the Parish-is: financially accountable for
them, or the nature and significance of their relationship withthe Parish-is such that exclusion would canse
the Parish’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete..

The Parish is ﬁnancxally accountable for an organization -if it appoints a voting majonty of the
organization’s governing body and is able to.impose its will on-that organization, or there is'a potentlal for
the organization to provide:specific f financial benefits to or. 1mpose specific financial burdens on the Parish.
In:addition, an organization that is ﬁsca.l]y dependent on the primary government should be included in its
reporting entity.

Component Units

‘In accordance with GASB, the Parish has determined the following component units are part of the
reporting entity.

St. Bernard Parish Hospital December 31, year end

St. Bemard Parish Library December 31, year end
St. Bernard Parish Home Mortgage Authority March 31, year end

adm:mslrat:ve oﬁces The Pansh has chosen 'to issue financial statements- of the primary government
only; therefore only the funds, organizations, institutions, agencies, departments, and offices that comprise
the Parish’s legal entity are included. GASB Codification provides for the issuance of primary govemment
financial statements that are separate from those of the reporting entity.  However, the primary
government’s ‘(the.Parish) financial statements are not a substitute for the reporting entity’s financial
statements. The accompanying primary, government financial statements have been prepared in conformity
with generally' accepted accounting principles as applied to government entities. These financial
statements are not intended to and do not report on the réporting; entity but rather are intended to reflect
only the financial statements of the primary government only of the Parish,
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Notes to Basic Finaqéial‘Statementsr

December 31,2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued

.Component Units (continued)

Considered-in the determination of component units of the reporting entity were the Parish School Board,

the Parish. Assessor's Office, the Parish Clerk of Court, the. Judicial Clerk's Fund of the Thirty-Fouth
Judicial District Court, the:Indigent Defender Board, the Parish Sheriff’s Office, and the Council on Aging..
It was determined that these governmental entities are not component units of the Parish Government
reporting entity because they have separately elected govemning bodies, are legally separate; and are
fiscally independent of the Parish Government. '

Basis of Presentation — Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Parish’s basic financial statements -include both govemment—w'lde (reporting the Parish as -a. whole)
and fund financial statements (reporlmg the Parish’s-major funds). Both the government-wide and fund
financial statements categorize primary-activities as either-governmental or business-type: The Parish’s
_;udlclal .general government, public safety, public works, cultural and'recreation, and health and welfare
services are classified as governmental activities. ‘The Parish’s water and sewer services are classified as
business-type activities. '

In the government:wide Statement of Net Position, both governmental and business-type activities
columas (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, (b) and are reported on a full accrual,
economic resources basis, which recognizes long-term assets and receivables, long-term debt and
obligations, as well as deferred inflows/outflows of resources.

The government-wide- Statement of Activities reports both the gross-and net cost of each of the Parish’s
functions and business-type activities. The functions are also supported by general government revenues,
including property taxes, sales taxes; and other general ‘revenués. Program revenues must be directly
associated with the function (|udlclal, general government, public safety, public works; cultural and
recreation, and health'and welfare), or.a business-type activity. Operating grants include operating specific
and discretionary. grants; while the capital grants column reports capital specific.grants: The net costs (by
function-and business-type activity) are normally covered by general revenues of the Parish. Indirect costs
are not allocated by function for financial reporting in this statement; however, certain indirect costs which
can be specifically identified by function or segment areincluded in the direct expenses of that function or
segment.

This government-wide focus.is more on the sustmnabﬂlty of the Parish as an entity and the changes.in the
Parish’s net positions resulting from the current year’s activities.
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ST. BERNARD.PARISH GOVERNMENT
Notes:to Basic Financial Statements

December 31, 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Pélicies (continued) '
Basis of Presentation — Fund Financial Statements -

The financial transactions of the Parish are reported in individual funds:in the fund firancial statements.

Each fund is-accounted for by providing a'separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets,

liabilities, fund equity; revenues and expenditures/expenses.

The- emphasxs in fund financial statements is on the major funds in.either the governmental or business-
type-activities:categories. Nori-major f funids by category are summatized'into: a single:column on the; ﬁmdl
financial statements. GASBS No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage: of assets; liabilities, revenues:
or expendifures/expenses of either fund. category of the govemmental and. cnterpnse combined) for the:
determination of major funds. ‘The nop-major funds are combined in a column in the fund financial
statemnents.

Governmental Funds-

The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon determination of
financial position and changes in financial position. (sources uses,-and balances of financial resom-ces)
rather than.upon net'income. The various funds of the. prlmary govermnent are grouped-into generic fund
types and broad-fund categories as follows:

(a) General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund:of the Parish. It is used to account
for all financial resources except those required to be accourted for in: other funds. The General
Fund is always a major fund.

(b) Special Revenue Funds — Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources which by law are designated to finance particular functions or activities of the
Parish. The two special revenue funds reported as major funds-in the-fund financial statements are
as. follows

CDBG Disaster Fund — This special revenue fund is'used to account, for the proceeds and expenses
associated with CDBG funds.

Disaster Recovery Fund — This special revenue fund accounts for grants received from the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) for natural disasters.

(c) Debt Service Funds — Debt service funds are established to meet-requirements of bond ordinances

and to account for the accumulation of .resources for, and payment of, long-term debt principal, '

interest, arid related costs.. There are no debt service funds that are major funds.
(d) ngual M ects Funds' ‘Capital projects ﬁmds are used to acc0unt for ﬁmmcml resources to be

propnetary fund). In addition, the funds are used to account for major street: repairs and the
acquisition of movable fixed assets. There are no.capital projects funds that are major funds.

financial slm:ements
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December 31, 2013

Summary of Signifi cant Accounting Policies.(continued)
Basis of Presentation — Fand Financial Statements (continued)
Propri Funds

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes in net
position, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting prmclples applicable are
those similar to business in the private sector. The Parish reports the following proprietary fund types:

(a) Enterprise Funds — Enterprise fands are required to be used to account for operations for which a
fee is charged to external users for'goods or services and the activity is financed with debt that:is
solely secured by a pledge of net reveriues. The activities reported in these funds -are.reported-as
business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The Water and Sewer
enterprise funds operate the Parish’s water distribution system and its sewer system which primarily
services the Parish’s residents.

() Internal Service Funds — Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or

services provided by an activityto other departments or funds of the Parish on a cost reimbursement.

basis. Because the principal users of the internal services are the Parish’s governmental activities,
the financial statement of the internal service fund is-consolidated into the governmental column
when presented in the govemment-mde financial statements.

Basis of Accounhng-Measurement Focus

Basis:of Accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses-are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made

regardless of the measurement focus-applied.

Accrual

Both -governmental and business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements and the
propnetary fund financial statements are: presemed on the ‘accrual basis. of accounting. Property taxes are
reported in the period for: which levied. Other non-exchange revenues, including intergovernmental

revenues and grants are reported when all eligibility requirements have been met. Fees and charges and

other exchange revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.
Modified Accrual

The governmental funds financial statements are presented:on the modified accrual basis of accountmg,
Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e.,
both measureable and available. “Available” means collectible within the current period-or within 60’ days
after year end. Property tax revenues are recognized in the period for which levied provided they are also

available. Intergovernmental revenues and grants are recognized when all eligibility requirements are met.

and the revenues are available.  Recognition of governmental fund type revenues represented by
noncurrent réceivables is:deferred until they become available. ‘Expenditures are recognized when .the
related liability is incurred. Exceptions to this general rule include principal and interest on general
obligation long-term debt.and.employee vacation and sick leave, which are recognmed when due and
payable:
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December 31, 2013

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Change in Accounting Principles

The Parish hds implemented GASB Statement No. 65, Ifems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities,

in 2013. This standard prowdes guldance for reporting the financial statemerit elements of deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, required by GASB Statement No. 63, Financial
Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resourcés, and Net Position. GASB
Statement No. 65 also identifies certain items previously reported as assets-and liabilities that the GASB
determined should be recognized.as revenues, expenses, or expenditures when.incurred and not reported in-
statements of net position/balance’ sheets. The Parish lmplemented this ‘statement eﬁ'ectwe January 1,

2013, with no impact to.the Parish.

The GASB issued .Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections - 2012 in March 2012. The objective of this:
Statément is to improve accounting and financial reportmg for a governmental financial reporting entity by
resolving conflicting guidance' that resulted from the issiiance of two pronouncements, Statements No. 54,
Fund. Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, and No. 62, Codification of
Accounting and Financial Reportmg Guidance Contained in Pre:November 30, 1989. FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements. The provisions of this Statement are effective for 2013. There was no .impact-to the
Parish with the implementation of this statement.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
requires: management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets-and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well
as'the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates. The current economic environment has increased the degree of uncertainty inherent

‘in'those estimates and assumptions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Parish’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

A single consolidated bank account has been established.in a local bank into which monies are deposited
anid from which most disbursements are made.. The purpose of this .consolidation is to reduce
administrative costs aid provnde a smgle cash balance available for the maximization of investment
earnings. Each fund .shares in the investment earnings according to its average cash balance, prorated
between funds.

For -purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes petty cash and demand deposits. Certain

proceeds of the Enterprise funds revenue bonds and sales tax bonds, as well as cértain resources set aside
for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the Statement of Net Position because their use is
limited by applicable bond covenants.

Investments

Investments are stated at fair-value based on qiloted market prices.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT -
‘Notes.to Basic Financial Statements

December 31,2013

‘Investments — Land Held for Sale

The-Parish has jproperty’ ‘that is:beingactively marketed'for sale at year end. Accordmglys the; property .is
recorded .at. the lower. of cost. or fair vahie-and.is reported as assets held for sale in the accompanymg'
istatement of net position.

Accounts Receivable

'Major;accounts receivable ‘are recorded:for: (1) sales:and use:taxes; (2) ad valorem. taxes; (3).road royalty;
(4) customer, and unbﬂled recelvables in the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund; and (6)) federal:grants
receivable: Acéounts’ receivable:are: reported net. of an allowance for' uncoliectibles. The;allowances are
based on management's. best. esnmate of unicollectible:amounts.

‘Inventoriés and Prepaid Items

. 'The Water-and Sewer Division Enterprise;Fund maintains:an inventory of | parts -and expendable supplies
that js valued at the lower. of-cost or market: The:inventory is.recognized as an expense when'consumed.

Certdin paymients to vendois:reflect costs applicable to future'accounting periods and are recorded-as: -paid
Jitems'in‘both the goverhment-wide and fiind'financial statements..

Chpit'al Assets

Capital assets- (1 e., land, buildings, equipment, and improvements;other than® bmldmgs), which in¢lude the
Parish’s mﬁ'asu'ucture and construction'in-progress, are stated. at historical cost or,estimated historical cost
if h1stonca1 cost is not known.. Donated capital assetsare. recorded at their fair value on the:date donated.
An‘item is classified as‘an asset if the 1n1tlal mdmdua] cost’is $5,000 or greater, Capital assets of the
Parish are réported in ‘the government: — wide financial statements bit'not in the ,governmental find
financial statements. Assets subject to depreciation. are: deprecmted using the straight-line méthod over
estimated useful lives. A.salvage'value:of 10% of historical costiis assigned to- depreciable.assets of the
Parish.

.Additions and' improvements’ that- sngmﬁcantly extend the useful life of ‘an asset are capxtallzed ‘Repairs
and maintenance costs‘are éxpensed-as‘incurred.

The Parish reviews;:the can-ymg value: of its: capital ‘assets to:determine if circumstances exist: mdlcatmg

1mpa.1rment in the carrying value of capital assets. If facts or. circumstances support the possibility of
impairmiént, management follows' guidance in GASB'Stitemerit. No. 42,  Accowriting and Finaricial

Reporting:for. Impairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries. If. impairment is indicated, an

adjustment will be:made to the carrying value of the capital assets.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December 31, 2013
Summary of Significant Accounﬁng'l’oli'cies,(contim!edl

Capital Asséts (continued)
The estimated useful lives (in years) of all depreciable assets are as follows:

Buildings and improvements 20— 40
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment. 5-10
Machinery and equipment 5-15
Bridges 40
- Water and sewerage Systems: - 25
Canals 30 -50
Road system 20 -40

Capital assets, are:included in the-capital asset accounts until their disposal. The cost of assets sold or
‘retired and the related-amourits of accumuléated: deprecmuon are eliminated from the accounts;in the year of

sale or retirement, and any resulting gain or loss is'recorded in the financial statements.

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to future periods and so
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then.

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to'a future period and so
will not be recogmzed as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Parish only has one type of
item, which arises under the modified accrual basis of accounting that. qualifies for reporting in this
category. Accordmgly ‘the ‘item, unavailable revenuo, is.reported only in.the governmental funds balance
sheet. The sotirce of the unavailable revenue is primarily ‘two items: receivable amounts:not received
within sixty:days and the land held for sale not sold within sixty days. This amount is .deferred and
recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amount becomes available.

Liability for Claims and Jud

The Insurance Fund was established to account.for thie self-insurance of workmans' compensatlon
unemployment compensation, general, and automobilé liability by the Parish Government. The Parish
Government is self-insured for claims up to $250,000 per occurrence.

The Parish Government has an insurance pollcy for claims between $250,000 and $5,000,000 per
occurrence.. One mdependent insurance service company administers the fund. The estimated claims
liability related to prior years' workers compensauan claims are computed by subtracting pmd claims from
the reserves prewously set up to arrive at remaining reserves and then developing:that number based on
factors deterniined by the third party administrator using historical data. The estimated claims liability
related to prior:years' general liability-and autoclaims-was estimated by.the Parish Government's. legal
department based on a ¢laim by claim evaluation to determine the potential loss. ‘Estimated claims’ hab1hty
related to'the current year's general liability, auto and workers’ compensation was:determined by using the
average annual claims expense incurred for each type of coverage based on the fund's history:
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December 31,2013

Summary of: Sl@lﬁcant Accounting Policies {continued)

An annual analysis of all open policy years for workers’ compensation and automobile and general liability
is-completed by the risk manager and legal .counsel to determine the exposure in each. policy year. When it
is. determined that losses on outstanding and current claims can be reasonably estimated, an evaluation on
the policy year is performed. The evaluation determines if a dividend can be declared by the self-insurance

fund. for that policy year. Once:itis determined that a dividend can be- declared, the findings are reviewed

by the adm1mstratton and presented before the Parish Council. The Parish Councll then ‘must pass an
ordinance declaring a dividend from the self-insurance fund and dedicating the dividend to a project.
There were no dividends paid for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Annual and Sick Leave

Substantially-all employees of the Parish Government.eamn from 10 to 20 days of annual leave each year
depending on length of service. Annual'ledve accumulated in one year must be used by December 31 of the
following year. Accumulated-annual leave -may be used only after 26 weeks of service. Substantially all
employees of the Parish Government accrue one day of sick leave for each month of continuous
employment. Sick leave may, be accumulated to a maximum of-90 days.

Fire department employees may be paid out for their accrued vacation upon retirement or termination.

Firéfighters can get paid.up to 1/3 of their accumulated sick pay upon termination. According to L.R.S.

33:1995, firemen employed by the Parish Government are entitled.to-full pay during sickness or incapacity
not brought about by the fireman's own negligence for a period of fifty-two weeks.- At December 31, 2013,

accrued vacation and sick leave was $1,555,678 for governmental activities.

At December.31, 2013, the accrued vacation and sick leave was'$213,821 for business type activities. In
the government-wide financial statements and the proprietary fund types fund statements, the total
compensated absences-liability is-recorded as an expense and a long-term obligation and. allocated on-a
functional basis.

Long-term Obligations

In the government-wide:and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over
the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable
bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are expensed as.incurred.

In-the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well
as'bond issuance. costs, during the current period. The face amount of the debt issued'is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while
discounts-on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld
from'the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

"December 31,2013 '

The Parish has: mplemented GASB Statement: fNo ‘63, Financial Repomng of - Deferred Outflows of

Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, .arid. Net Position; eﬂ"ecuve”ﬁscal year 2012. This standard
providessguidance-for - sreporting the financial statement elements: of deferred outflows of résoiirces and
deferred ‘inflows' of :resources., Deferred outflows represent the consumption of-the. government's. net:

posmon that is: apphcable to a future reporting period. A deferred inflow. represents-thie acquisition of net
‘position that is apphcable to a'future reporting: ‘period.

Because deferred outflows and deferred inflows are; by definition, neither assets mor liabilities; the.
Statemeiit of net assets title is now referred 10 as’ the statement of net position. The statément of net position
feports fiet position as the difference between; all other élemeiits/in a statement of net position. In the:
govemment—wnde financial statements;:net position'is: dxsplayed’mto three components:

Invested in.capital sssets, net.of related debt ~ consists of the historical costof capital assets less
-acciimulated depreciation and. léss' any debt that rémains outstandmg ‘that was used to finance those
assets plus deferred outflows of resources less deférred inflows of resources related to those.assets.

‘b. Restricted nét.position - consists of assets that are restricted by the Parish’s creditors (for example
‘through debt'covenants), by the state: enablinig, leglslatlon (through testrictions on shared Tevenues), by
grentors: (both-federal. and state), and by other confributors.

c.. Unrestncted et position: - all other nét position that does not meet the ‘definition,of "resmcted"
“invested in capital assets, net-of related'debt”.

. Gb@éi-ximei_ntkl Find Balaht:‘_'es
“nthe governmental fund financial statements:fund balances are classified as-follows:
Eon-Smndable Fund Balance - amounts that cannot be spent eitlier because they:are in a‘non-spendable
:form (such.as prepaid éxpensés) or becatise they-are- 1égally .or contracmally requlred to be mairtained
‘intact.

‘Restricted Fund Balanice - amounfs that can’be. spent only»for ‘specific purposes because of the Parish
Charter, state’or federal laws, or extemally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors.

.Committed’ Fund Balance ;- amounts constrained to.specific purposes by a governmient itself, usingits
‘highest-level of decision making:authority by:a vote of the Parish:Council; to be reported .as.committed,
.amounts cannot bé:used for:any other purpose unless the government takes the same highest level action
‘to.retfiove or.change the constraint. .

-Assigned Fund Balance - amounts a government intends to use. for a specific purpose; intent' can be
expressed by the.govérning body: or by an official or body to which the governmental body delegates:the
-authority such as the Parish and-its- management.

‘Unassigned Fund Balance ~all amounts not included in other spéndable classifications.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December-31, 2013

ificant Accounting Policies (continue

Interfund Activi

Interfimd activity is reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements, or transfers. Loans are
reported as interfund receivables.and payables as appropriate and-are eliminated in the Statement. of Net
Position: Transfers between ‘governmental or between proprietary funds are netted as part of the
reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

The Parish’s’ proprietary. funds dlstmgulsh between operating and non-operating-revenues and expenses
Operating revenues and expenses of the Parish’s water and sewer funds consist of charges for services and
the costs of providing those services, including depreciation and excluding interest cost. All other
revenues and expenses are reported as non-opem!mg

Budgets

The procedures used by the Parish in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements
are as follows:

At Jeast ninety (90) days before the beginning of each fiscal year, the Parish President submits a balanced
consolidated line item operating and capital budget on a modified accrual basis of accounting in
accordarnice with the Louisiana Local Government Budget Act and:in.a format established'by the. Parish.

The Parish President submits, with the budget, a budget message containing recommendations concerning
the fiscal policy of the Parish, a description of the important factors of the budget, and an explananon of all
major increases or decreases of budget recommendations as compared with expenditires of prior years,

The Parish Council pubhshes the proposed budget in-the official journalat'least ten (10):calendar days
before the meeting at which the budget is to be adopted The Council may amend the budget before
adoption, except that in:no event shall the Council cause the total proposed expenditures to exceed means
of fmancmg If the Council fails:to.act on the budget within the-time limit provided, it shall, be.adopted as
submitted by the Parish Presideni. The. budget constitutes an appropriition of funds for all purposes
contained therein. The budget ordinance becomes effective on the first day of the fiscal year unless
otherwise provided therein.

If during the fiscal year the Parish President certifies that there are available revenues in excess of those
estimated in the budget, he shall present a supplemental budget for the disposition of:such revenues to the
Council. The Council by ordinance may make-supplemental appropriations up to the amount of the excess.

To:meet a public emergency affécting life, health, property,.or the public peace, the: Council may make
emergency appropriations. The appropriations may be made by emergency ordinance in accordance with
the provisions of Article II, Section 2 - 14 of the Home Rule Charter. To the extent that there are no
available unappropnated revenues, the governing authority may borrow money to meet the émérgency.

The repayment shall be'a fixed charge upon the revenue of the following year and shall be included in the
operating budget for that year. If during the fiscal year it appears that ‘revenues available will be
insufficient to meet the amount appropriated, the Parish President shall indicate the estimated amount of
the deficit and'recommend to the Council steps to be taken. The Council shall take action as' it deems
necessary to prévent any deficit.
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ST.. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December 31,2013

Deposits and Investments

Deposits. The Parish’s deposits-are subject to and. maintained in accordance with the State of Louisiana’s
Constitutional Revised Statutes (Revised Statutes). Under the Revised Statutes, all deposits exceeding the
amount -insured by the FDIC are to be fully collateralized with specific approved securities designated
theréin valued at:102% ofithe deposits. The eligiblé:collateral pledged are held in- custody by any.Federal
Reserve Bank, or branch thereof or an independent ‘third party with whom the Parish has a current’
custodial agrecment. All collateral held must be clearly marked, indicating evidence of ownership
(safékeeping receipt). Deposits collateralized under ‘the Revised Statutes are considered’ collaterahzed with
securities held.by the pledging financial institutions trust department or agent in the “Parish’s name.”

At December 31, 2013, the carrying amount of the Parish’s deposits was $51,104,504.

-Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may not be

retuned to it under state law. At December 31, 2013, the Parish’s bank balances totaled $54,156,796.
These bank deposxts were completely secured by federal depository insurance.or the pledge of securities
held by the pledging banks agent in the Parish’s name at December.31, 2013.

Investments. State statutes:authorized the Parish Government to invest in-obligations.of the U.S. Treasury,
agencies, and instrumentalities; commercial paper rated AAA 1, 2, or 3;-repurchase agreements; and the
Louisiana Asset management pool. (LAMP)

The:Parish mvests monies. with the Louisiana Asset: Management Pool (LAMP) At'December 31,.2013,

the Parish*held $290,508 in LAMP i in the internal service funds. LAMP is administered by LAMP Inc., a

nonprofit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana. Only local government entities
having contracted to participate in LAMP have an investment. interest in its:pool of assets. The, primary

-objective:of LAMP is to provide a safe environment for the placement.of pubhc funds'in shoxt—term, high-

quahty investments.. The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and'other obligations in which local
governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in accordance with LSA-R.S. 33:2955.

GASB standards requires disclosure of credit risk, custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk,. interest
rate nsk, and forelgn currency,nsk for 4l public entity investments.

LAMP is a 2a7- like investment pool. The following facts are relevant for 2a7 like investment pools:
» Credit risk: LAMP is rated AAA by Standard & Poor’s.

e Custodial credit risk: LAMP participants’ investments in the pool are evidenced by shares of the pool.
Investments in; pools should be disclosed, but not categorized because they are not evidenced by
securities that exist in physlcal or book-entry form. The public entity’s investment is with the pool, not
the securities that make up the pool; therefore, no disclosure is required.

e Conceritration of credit risk: Pooled investments are excluded from the 5 percent disclosure
requirement.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December 31,2013

Deposits and Investments (continued)
Investments (continued)

o Interest.rate risk; LAMP:is designed to be highly liquid to give its: partlclpants ‘immediate access to
their account balances. LAMP prepares its own-interest rate risk disclosure using the weighted average:
maturity (WAM) method. The WAM of LAMP assets is_restricted to not more than 60- days, and
consists of no securities with a. miatirity in excess of 397 days. The WAM for LAMP’s total
investments is 60 as-of December 31, 2013.

» Foreign currency risk: Not applicable to 2a7 —like pools.

The investments in LAMP are stated at:fair value based on quoted market rates. The fair value is
determined on'a weekly basis by LAMP and the value of the position in the external investment pool is the
same as the nét:dsset value of the pool:shares.

'LAMP, Inc. is subject to the regulatory. oversight of the State Treasurer and the board of directors. LAMP

is not registered with the SEC as-an investment company.

The Parish follows GASB Statement:No. 31, Accomting,and Finaricial Reporting for Certain Investments
and for External Investment Pools, which requires the adjustments of the carrying values of investments to
fair value, .whlch is based on available market values. The Local Government Investment Pool is a
“2a-7-like” pool in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31; therefore, it is not presented at fair vatue but
at its actual pooled share price, which approximateés fair value:

GASB:standards requires disclosure of credit risk, custodial credit risk; concentration of credit risk, interest
rate risk, and foreign currency risk for all public entity investments.

Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate.risk is the risk:that changes in the financial market rates of interest will
adversely affect the value of an investment. The Parish manages interest rate risk for investments under the
control of the Parish by limiting the maximum maturity of investments in accordance with their investment
policy. As stated in its investment policy, the Parish will attempt to match its investments with. anticipated
cash flow requirements. Unless matched to a specific cash flow, cash will not be invested in.securities
maturing more than three years from the date of purchase.

At December 31, 2013, the. governmental and fiduciary funds, investment balances -and maturities for those
investments 'were as follows (amounts in thousands):

Investment maturity in years

Less than

Total one year
LAMP $ 290508 $ 290,508
Certificate of Deposit 573,819 573,819

Total investments  $ 864;32'7' $ 864327
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December31,2013

Deposits and Investments (continued}

Credit Quality Risk — Credit quality risk is the risk-that the issuer or other counterparty to a debt security
will not fulfill its obhgatlon to the Parish. The Parish does not have a policy statement concerning credit

quahty risk in its investment policy. National rating agencies 'assess this: risk and assign'acredit quality'

rating for most investments. Obligations of the U.S. government or obhgatlons exphcltly guaranteed by the
U.S..government . are not. assxgned credit-quality ratings. Credit. quality ratings are reported on obligations
of US. government agencies not explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government. LAMP has been rated
AAA by Standard & Poor’s Corporation.

Custodial Credit Risk — Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of a failure, the
Parish will. not be able to recover the value of its invéstments or collateral securities that-are in the
possession 6f an outside party. Investments are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are uninsured, are
not registered in the Parish’s name, and are held by either the counterparty to the'investment purchase or
the ‘counterparty’s trust department or agent but not held in the Parish’s name. The investments of the
Parish at December 31, 2013 were not subject to custodial credit risk.

The Parish has no formal investment policy regarding custodial credit risk‘or concentration of credit risk.

Investments — Land Held for Sale

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Parish entered into a cooperative endeavor agreement with
the State of Louisiana Office of Commumty Development and the Louisiana Road Home Corporation
d/b/a Louisiana Land Trust (LLT) , to transfer all the properties' within St. Bernard Parish that were: bemg
held by LLT to St. Bemard Parish. Included on the statement of net position at, December 31, 2013 is
$5,326;500.in land held for sale representmg lots throughout St. Bernard Parish. No depreciation is being

recorded on the properties being held:for sale. During the-year ended December 31, 2013, no properties-

were sold by the Parish.
Sales Tax Revenues

At December 31, 2013, thetotal sales tax levied in-the Parish is 9%, of which 4%is state sales tax, 2% is

levied by the St.'‘Bernatd Parish School Board (the School’ Board), and.5% is dedicated to the St. Bernard

Parish Sheriff. The remaining 2. 5% is used to fund the general operations of the Parish. The 2.5% sales tax
revenue dedicated to the Parish is recorded in the financial statements as follows: 1.5% is general
government operations of the Parish (general fund), :5% is for sanitation (non-major specml revenue fund),
and .5% is for water & sewerage (proprictary funds). The sales tax for water and sewer is dedicated for
improvements to the sewer and water system including authority to fund bonds: with the tax, provided that
at least 25% of the annual revenues of the sales tax must.be expended to correct inflow and infiltration in
sewerage collecuon_ lines, or to repair damages caused thereby, unless required for debt services on bonds
or-otherwise approved by at least two-thirds of the Parish Council. The St. Bernard Parish Sheriff is
authorized to collect and remit this:tax to the Parish government and School Board for a stipulated fee..
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December 31, 2013

(5) Ad Valorem Tax . .
The Parish levies a tax on real. and personal property. Portions of these property taxes, are:dedicated for. fire

and police protection services and the public library system. Taxes on real and personal property.are levied
on November 1 of the assessment year based upon the assessed value as of the prior:January 1. However,
before the tax can be levied, the tax rolls must be submitted to, the State Tax: Commission for approval.
Taxes are due and payable on November 15, the date on which an enforceable lien attaches on the
property; and are delinquent on December 31.

The assessed value of property in the Parish for each year-is determined by an elected Board of Assessors.
It .is then certified by the Louisiana Tax Commission as complying with the Louisiana Constitution of
1974. The Parish is: permitted by the Louisiana ‘statutes to:levy taxes up to $49.27 per $1,000 of assessed
valaation for general governmental services (mcludmg fire) other than the payment of principal and

interest on long-term debt.and other purposes specifically approved by the voters. It is permitted to levy’

taxes in unlimited amounts for the payment of principal and interest on gencral obhganon bonds ‘of the
Parish.

Property.tax levies per $1,000.0f assessed valuation accounted for within the funds of the Parish (primary:

government only) for the year ended December 31, 2013 are as-follows:

General:
General govemmental services $ 275
Special revenue: :
Fire Protection District No. 1 7.33
Fire Protection District No. 2 814
St. Bemard Council on Aging 0.94
Recreation 217
Public Warks (Road District No. 1) 3.05
Road Lighting District No. | 1.22
Public health 0.62
Garbage District No: 1 3.05
Parishwide fire protection facilities .20.00

3 49.27

Property taxes levied oo November 15, 2013, collected during 2013, or expected to be collected within the
first 60 days of 2014, are recognized as revenues in thestatement of revenues, expenditures, and changes
in fund balances — governmental funds. The entire estimated collectible: amount of the tax levy for the
fiscal year.is recorded as‘revenue in the government-wide financial statements. Property taxes paid under
protest are held in escrow until resolution of the disputz. Amounts collected for other governinental entities
are accounted for in the agency funds.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Notes to Basic F_inaneial Statements

December 31, 2013

(6) Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables

The allowance for estimated uncollectible receivables is based on historical collection experience and other
relevant circumstances. The allowance for estimated uncollectible amounts of the: primary ‘government

consists of the-following:
Governmental funds:
General Fund $ 25554
Non-major governmiental fiinds 358,140.
Business-type fands:
Water and Sewer Division 569,136
Total allowance for uncollectibles : '$ 952,830
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(7) Capital'Assets

ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December 31,2013

A summary of changes in capital assets of governmental activities and business-type is as follows:

Governments] Activities:
Nondepreciable capital agsets:
Land
Construction in progress
Total nondepreciable capital assets-
Depreciable capital assets:
Buildings and improvements
Furniture, fixtiires, and equipment.
Madnm:ry anil equipment
Road system
Bridges
Total depreciable capital assets
Less: accumulated depreciation
Total depreciable capital assets; net
Total governmental activities
capital assets, net
usi A cfivities:
Nondeprecisble capital assets:
Land
Construction in progress
Total nondépreciable capital assets
Deprecisble capital assets:
Buildings )
Fumiture, fixtures, and equipment
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Total depreciable capital assets
Less: accumulated depreciation
Total depreciable’capital assets, net
Total business-type ectivities.
capital assets, net’

Balapce : Balanee
January 1, Deletions and December 31,

2013 Additions adjustments Transfers 2013
$ 1924580% §. - 8 - s - $ 19245801
26,739,396 18,263,313 . 1,126,5 23,876,204
45,985,197 18,263,313 - (21,126,505) 43,122,005
20,167 - - - 20,167
129,682,131 220,209 {200,000) - 129,702,340
381,929 - - - 381,529
17,762,374 682,386 (712,424) - 17,132,336
225,456,815 83,888 - 21,126,505 :246,667,208
1,363,360 - - - 1,363,360
374,666,776 986,483 (912,424) 21,126,505 395,867,340
(40,562,437) (13,049,099) 762,682 (52,848.854)
334,104,339 (12,062,616) (149,742) 21,126,505 343,018,486
$ 380,089,536 $ 6200697 § (149,742) 'S . $ 386,140,491
$ 21,036 $ - 8 - 8 - S 221,036
48,920,601 16,957,516 - (15,267,055) __ _ 50,611,062
49,141,637 - 16,957,516 - (15,267,055) 50,832,098
74,162,299 - (190,731) - 73,971,568
36,492 - - - 36,492
1,920,372 - (306,897 - 1,613,475
172,171,195 341,442 - 15,267,055 187,779,692
248 290,358 341,442 (497,628) 15,267,055 263,401,227
(104,535,572) (5,153,714) 422,116 - (109,267,170)
143,754,786 | (4812272) (75,512) 15,267,055 154,134,057
$ 192896423 § 12145244 § (75,512) § - _$ 204,966,155

At December 31, 2013, construction progress-in the business-type activities primarily consists of improvements

to the sewer sanitary system.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GO VERNMENT
Notes to Basic. Financial Statements

DPecember 31, 2013

(7) Capital Assets (continued)

‘Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as:

Governmental Activities:
General government

Judicial

Library

‘Other general government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Health and wélfare

Total depreciation expense -
governmental activities

Busin ess- jvities:
Water and sewer
" (8) Long-Term Debt

Bond Transactions - governmental funds

The Parish issues bonds to provide for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. ‘Bonds

payable, at December 31, 2013 comprise the following:

$ 518,347
30,506
382,529
829,915
10,244,429
976,097
67,276

S 13,049,099

Range of
Original average Amount Due in
___Description issne interest rates outstanding one year

2012 Sales Tax Refunding

Bonds, due in annual installments

ranging from $470,000 to $3;515,000

‘commencing March 2014 . )

through March 2024 $33,885,000 0.9 -4.0% $ 33,885000 § 470,000
2013 Limited Tax Certificates of

Indebtedness, due in full

in March 2014 9,356,000 1.03% 9,356,000 9,356,000

Bond premium at December 31, 2013
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43,241,000 § 9,826,000

2,009,144

§ 45,250,144
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNNIENT'
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December 31, 2013

Long-Term Dept (continued) -

On January 1, 2003, the 2003 Sales Tax. Refundinig Bonds were issued for the purpose of refunding the
1996 Public Improvement Bonds and making capital improvements: A portion:($3,200,000).of the 2003
bonds were defeased during the year-ended December. 31,2012 with proceeds from the- 2012 Sales Tax
Refunding Bonds. In March of 2013, the remainder of ﬁle 2003 Sales Tax Refunding Bonds were pa.ld in
full.

On July 17, 2012, the 2012 Sales Tax Refunding Bonds were issued for the purpose of refunding the 2003
Sales Tax Refunding Bonds and the 2004 Sales Tax Bonds.

‘On.July 1, 2013, the 2013 Limited Tax Certificates of Indebtedness were issued for the purpose of advance

funding in -anticipation of the collection of parish wide fire district ad valorem tax revenues. The
Certificates were paid in full in January 2014.

Bond Transactions — proprietary funds

. Range of
Original average Amount .Due in
Description . issne intérest rates outstanding one year
2004 Sales Tax Bonds
due in annual installments
ranging from $45,000 to $2,415,000
commencing August 2004 )
through-March 2024 $ 50,000,000 4.0-5.0% $ 2935000 $ 2415000
2008 Sales Tax-Refunding
Bonds, due in annual installments
ranging from $615,000 to $795,000
commencing March 2008
through March 2019 6,715,000 3.88% 4,305,000 640,000

7,240,000 $ 3,055,000

Bond premium at December-31, 2013 118,514

$ 7358514

On August 1, 2004, the 2004 Sales Tax Bonds were issued-to provide for capital mpmveménts to the
Water and Sewer funds. A portion ($30,210,000)-of the 2004 Sales Tax bonds were defeased during the

year ended December 31,2012 with proceeds from the 2012 Sales Tax Refunding Bonds.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December 31, 2013

Long-Term Debt (continued)
The payment requirements for all bonds outstanding, including, as of December-31, 2013, are as follows:

Principal Interest
“Year ending December.31:

2014 $ 12,881,000 $ 1,617,283
2015 3,675,000 1 404 927
2016 3,780,000 1,273 712

2017 3,910,000 1,123,152

2018 4,060,000 967,228
2019 - 2023 18, 600 000 2,500,646

2024 - 2048 3,575,000 70,300

$ 50,481,000 § 8957248

The Parish’s legal debt limit for General Obligation Bonds is $30,986,642. At December:31,2013, Parish’s
outstanding debt is funded through sales tax receipts. At December 31, 2013, the Parish has $30,986,642

-available for general obligation debt.

The various bond indentures contain significant limitations ‘and restrictions on annual debt service

—requirements, maintenance of and flow of moneys through various restricted accounts, minimum amounts

to be maintained in various sinking funds, and minimum.revenue bond coverages. At:December 31, 2013,
management believes it is in. compliance with-all financial related covenants.

General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012

In July 2012, the Parish issued $33,885,000 of Sales Tax Refunding Bonds (Series 2012) to refund
$30,210,000 of the Series 2004 Sales Tax Bonds, and $3,200,000 of the Series 2003 Sales Tax Bonds. The
cost of issuance of the Series 2012 Sales Tax Refunding Bonds totaled $348,120. and the net deferred loss

" on refunding was'$130,823. By refunding these bonds, the Parish reduced its. total debt service:payments

over the next 11 years by approximately $1,889,518 and obtained an-economic gain .of approximately
$1,612,440,

Defeased Bonds

The Series 2003 Sales Tax Bonds and Series 2004 Sales Tax Bonds were parually advanced refunded in
2012. A portion of the pmcecds from a subsequent bond issuance was placed in escrow with a trustee.
The: principal and interest’ from these invested funds is used to service the debt of the refunded issue.
Neither the: escrow fund nor the Series 2003 and Series 2004 bonds payable ‘are shown in the
accompanying statement ofinet position. At December 31, 2013, the outstanding balance of the defeased
Series 2003 and 2004 bonds was:$0 and'$2;935,000, respectwely
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December 31,2013

Long-Term Debt (continued)
Revenué Anticipation Note

In October 2012, the Parish issued a revenue anticipation note in the amount of $5,000,000 to pay the costs
of current operations of the Parish. The note bears. interest at 3:25% and matures on March 1, 2013. At
December 31, 2012, the note had a balance of $60,000 which was paid in full in February 2013,

Limited Tax Certificates of Indebtedness

In July 2013, the Parish issued limited certlﬁcates of indebtedness totaling $9,356,000. The-certificates
bear interest at 1.03% and mature on March 3, 2014. Thus, the entire amount of the. certificates is included

as a current liability in the statement of net position at December 31, 2013. At December 31, 2013, the.

certificates had-a balance of $9,356,000 which were paid in full in January 2014.
Loans Payable

During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Parish entered’into-a long-term agreement with the Federal
Emergency ‘Management Agency: (FEMA) under the Commumty staster Loan (CDL) Act as a result of
the:major. disaster declaration relating to Hurricane Gustay. The Parish did not receive-any funds for the
CDL loan during the year ended December 31, 2013. The loan was for a term of five. years with annual
payments of principal and interest (rate of: 1.875%) through the maturxty date of ‘April 2014. Simple
intérest was.to accrue on the outstanding principal balance until payment in full on the maturity date. In
Decenibér 2013 FEMA approved the cancellation of the Parish’s CDL loan, including- principal. and

$ 11086201 $ 102,764 §  (3,029,155) § 8,159810 § 3;108455

-accrued interest totaling $5,403,510.

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long:term liability activity for the year.ended December 31, 2013 was as follows:

_ January 1, ) December 31, ‘Due In
2013 ) ‘Additions_ Deletions 2013 one year
Governmental Activities:
Claims and judgments (note 13) $ 3,611,808 § 1068449 5 (559237) 5 4,121,020 § -
Accrued anmnal ‘and sick leave (note 1) 1,417,454 138,224 - 1,555,678 388,920
Sales tax bonds 34,165,000 . (280,000) 33,885,000 470,000
Premiu on sales tix bonds payable 2,203,269 - (194,125) 2,009,144 -
Community Disester Loan 5,000,000 - (5,000,000) - -
Post-employment benefits (note 12)- 1,562,519 236,898 - 1,799,417 1,011,100
' § 47960050 5§ 148571 3 (603336 3 43370259 § 1,570,030

‘Business-type Activities: R
Claims gnd judgments (noto 13) § 559450, §& 102764 § (74,740 § 587474 8 -
Accrued anmual and sick leave (note.1) 222,463 - (8,681 213,822 53,455
Sales tax bonds 10,175,000 - (2,935,000 7,240,000 3,055,000
Premium on sales tax bonds payable 129,288 - (10,774) 118,514
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

Decembér 31,2013
Long-Term Debt (continued)

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (continued)
The long-term liabilities will be repaid from the General Fund, and the.Sales Tax Bonds' whichi-will be

repald from the Debt Service Funds and the Sewer and Water Funds. At December 31, 2013, the debt.

service funds had $1,232,224 in fund balance reserved to service debt.
Operating Y ease Income

The Parish’s governmental activities recorded lease income of $110,550 from four lease agreéements in
efféct during the year ended December 31, 2013. "The Parish’s business-type. activities recorded lease.

income of, $68,990 from six lease agreements'in effect;during the year'ended December 31, 2013, ‘The
Parish has also granted the St. Bernard Parish School Board the use of propeny at:St: Bernard nghway
and Palmisano Boulevard free of rent for a period of thirty years.

The future minimum rental for the next five years and in the aggregate are:

Year Ending Govemnmental ‘Business-type
December 31, Activities Activities
2014 $ 110,550 . § 68,190
2015 110,550 54,182
2016 92,550 56,731
2017 92,550 56,731
2018 92,550 56,731
2019-2023 370,200 126312
Total $ 868,950 $ 418,877
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Notes.to Basic Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

(10) Interfund Payables, Receivables and Transfers

The primary purpose of interfund recéivables and payables is to loan monies from the general fund to
individual funds to cover currént: expenditures. Individual fund balances due from/to other funds at
December 31, 2013, were as follows:

‘Due From Other Due To Other
Fund Funds. Funds
Governmental funds
Major funds
General Fund $ 9,104,788 $ 8,760,076
CDBG Fund - 58,026
Disaster Recovery Fund - 14,025,396 14,088,714
Non-major funds 3,825,691 . 7,057,585
‘Total governmental funds 26,955,875 29,964,401
Proprietary fund
Water and Sewer Fund 12,490,991 10,328,554
Self Insurance Internal Service 286,909 -
Water and Sewer-Self
Insurance Internal Service. 820,472 261,292
Total proprietary - funds 13,598,372 10,589,846
Total all funds 3 40,554,247 $ 40,554,247

Transfers between funds during the year ended December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Fund Transfers In Transfers Out
Governmental funds
Major funds
‘General Fund $ 5,230,831 s 10,622,822
CDBG Disaster Fund - 136
Disaster. Recovery Fund 292,252 14,825,304
Non-major funds- 6,168,869 - 453,546
Total governmental funds 11,691,952 25,901,808
Proprietary fund
Water and Sewer. Fund 18,173,966 3,964,110
Total proprietary funds 18,173,966 3,964,110
Total all funds $ 29865918 % 29,865,918

The significant operating transfers during the year ended December 31, 2013 related to the transfer of
$14,442,812 from the Disaster Recovery Fund to the' Water and Sewer Fund related to improvements of
water facilities funded by FEMA.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

December 31, 2013 '

(11) Employee Retirement Systems

‘The Parish ‘Government contributes to the Parochial Employees Retirément System of Louisiana, the
Firefighters' Retirement System, the District Attorneys' Retirement System of Louisiana, and the Registrar

of Voters Reétirement System. The Parish's “payroll for employees covered by the retirement systems for the

year ended December 31, 2013 was $l3,337 504 (which includes a Parish payroll of $11,459,459 and
Water and Sewer Division payroll of $1,878,045).

a) Parochial Employees' Retirement System

Employees of the Parish and Water and Sewer Division are members of the Parochial Employees'
Retirement System of Louisiana (the System) a multiple-employer (cost sharing), public-employee
retirement. system (PERS) The System is composed of two distinct plans, Plan A and Plan B, with
separate.assets-and benefit provisions.

Plan Description - The Parish and Water and Sewer Division contribute to Plan. A of the Parochial

Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (the System), cost-sharing multiple:employer ‘defined
benefit public employee retirement system (PERS), which is.controlled and administered by a separate
‘Board of Trustees. The System provides retirement, deferred.and disability benefits, survivor's benefits
and cost of living adjustments to plan members and. beneficiaries: Act 205 of the 1952 ‘Louisiana
Legislative Session established the plan. The System is governed by Louisiana Revised Statutes
11:1901 through 11:2015, specifically, and other general laws of the State of Louisiana. The System
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and ‘required
supplementary information for the ‘System. That report:may be obtained by writing to Parochial
Employees" Retirement System of Louisiana, P.O. Box 14619, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70898-4619.

Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute 9.50% of their annual-covered salary.
Employer contributions are actuarially determined every fiscal year according to statutory process. The
current rate is 16.75% of annual payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members-and the
Parish and. Water and Sewer Divisionare established and may be amended by staté statute. The Parish
Government's contributions to the System for the:years.ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011
were $1,328,418, $1,374,057, and $1,324,392, respectively, equal to the required contnbunons for
each year. For the year ended December 31, 2013, the total payroll for Water and Sewer Division
employees .covered by the System under Plan A was $1,878,045. The Water and Sewer Division’s
contributions to the System for the.years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were $314,573,
$293,841, and $281,534, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year.
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(11) Employee Retirement Systems (continued)
b) Firefighters’” Retirement System

‘Plan Description - The Parish contributes-to the Firefighters' Retirement System-of Louisiana (the

System), a cost-sharing’ multiple-employer defined bepefit public retirement system, which is
controlled and administered. by a separate Board of Trustees. The System provides retirement, deferred
and disability benefits, survivor's benefits and cost of living adjustments to plan members and
beneficiaries. Act 434 of the 1979 Louisiana Legislative Session established the plan, The System is
govemed by Louisiana Revised Statutes 11:2251 through 11:2269, specifically, and ‘other general laws
of the State of Louisiana. The System issues a publicly available financial report that includes-financial
statements .and required supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by

‘writing to Firefighters' Retirement. System of Louisiana, 2051 Silverside Drive, Suite 210, Baton

Rouge, Lomsmna 70808-4136.

Funding Policy — During 2013 plan ‘members are required to contribute 10.00% of their earnable
compensation and.the Parish is reqmred to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. Beginning
January 1, 2013, the Parish was paying a rate of 24.00% of annual covered payroll. Effective July1,
2013, that tate increased t0:28.25%. The'contribution requirements of plan members and.the Parish,
are established and.may be amended by state statute. The Parish's contributions to the System for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were $1,336,947, $1,196,993, and $977, 736
respectively; equal to the required contributions for.each'year:

District Attomey’s Retirement System.

lan Description - The Parish contributes to the District Attorneys' Restirement System (the System), a
cost sharing multlple employer public employee retirement system, which is controlled and
administered by a separate Board.of Trustees. The System provides retiremerit, deférred and disability
benefits, survivor's benefits and cost of living adjustments- to plan members and beneficiaries. Act’56
of the 1956 Louisiana Legislative Session.established the plan. The System is governed by Louisiana

.Revised Statutes 11:1581 through ‘11: 1702, specifically, and othér general laws of the State of

Louisiana. The System issues a publicly available: financial report that includes financial statements

and required supplementary information for the system. That report may be obtained by writing to

District Attorney Retirement System, 2109 ‘Decatur Street, New Orleans, Louisiana 70116:

Funding Policy - Plan members are required to contribute 8% of their compensation to the System.
Beginning January 1, 2013, the Parish was- .paying a rate of 10.25% of annhal ‘covered payroll ‘On July
1, 2013, that rate decreased to 9.75%. The contribution requirements of plan members and the Parish
are established and may. be: amended by state statute. The Parish's contributions to the System or the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 were $25,596, $25,181, and $23,277, respectively,
equal to the required contributions for each’year.
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(11) Employee Retirement Systems (continued)

d) Registrar of Voters Retirement System

Plan Description — The Parish contributes to the Registrar of Voters Retirement System (the,System), a
cost:sharing multiple-employer:plan (Retxreruent System Trust Fund). and a Savings Plan (Members'
Supplemental Savings Trust. Fund) which ‘is.controlled and administered by a separate Board of
Trustees. The System provides normal retirement, early retirement, disability retirements and death
benefits, as specified in the plan. The plan was established s of January 1, 1955 by Act 215 of 1954,
under R.S. Title 11:2032, as amended, for the purpose of providing -retirement allowances and other
benefits._for. registrars of voters, their deputies:and their permanent employees in each: parish of the
State of Louisiania. The Systcm issues.a pubhcly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for the System. That report may | be obtained by
writing'to Registrars of Voters Employees' Retirement System 300 State Street Room. 107 Jennings,
Louisiana 70546.

Funding Policy — Plan members:are required to contribute 7.00% of their compensation to the: System.
Beginning January 1, 2013, the Parish was paying a rate.of 19.75% of annual covered payroll. On July
1, 2013, that rate mcreased to 24.25%. The contribution requirements of plan members and the Parish
are established and may be amended by:state statute. The Parish’s contributions to the.System for the
years ended-December 31,.2013,2012, and 2011 were:$7,876, $6,239, and'$4,340, respectively, equal
to the required contributions for each year.

(12) Post Employment Benefits

Plan Description

St. Bernard Parish Government's-medical and life benefits are provided to eligible employees and retired
employees. The plan is a single employer plan and is funded by a combination of contributions from the
Parish and the retirees. No separate audited postemployment benefit plan report is available for this plan.

The ret_irement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) pfoviéi('ili (other than firefighters) is as'follows for employees
hired pnorto January 1, 2007: 30 years of service at any age; age 55 and 25 years of service; age 60 and 10
years of service; or, age 65 and 7 years of service. For employees hired.on and after January 1, 2007 (other
than ﬁreﬁghters), the provisions are as follows: age.55. and 30 years of service; age 62 and 10 years' of
seivice; or, age 67 and 7 years -of iservice. The retirement eligibility (D R.O.P. entry) provisions for
ﬁreﬁghters are as follows: age 55 and 12 years of service; age 50 and 20 years of 'service; 25 years of
service at any age. See the section to follow entitled "Post Employment Benefit Plan Eligibility
Requirements" for the assumption as to actual retirement.

Contribution Rates

Employees do not contribute to their post employment benefits costs until they become retirees and begin
receiving those benefits. The plan provisions and contnbutlon rates are contained in the official plan
documents.
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(12) Post Employment Benefits (continued)

Fund Policy

Until December 31, 2007, the Parish Government recognized the cost of providing post-employment.
medical benefits (the Parish Governmient's portion of the retiree medical benefit premiums) as an expense

when the benefit premiums were due and thus financed the cost of the post-employment benefits on a pay-

_as-you-go basis. Effective January 1, 2008, the Parish Government implemented Government Accounting
Standards Board Statement’ Number 45; Accounting and Financial -Reporting by Employers for Post
employment Benefits Other than Pensions (GASB'45). The funding pohcy is not to fund the ARC except to
the extent of the current: year's retiree funding, costs. The contribution. requirements of the. plan members
and the Parish are established and may be amended by the Parish Council.

In 2013, the Parish Government's portion of health care funding cost. for retired employees totaled:

$1,027,316. These amounts were applied-toward the Net OPEB Benefit Obligation as shown in the.table
on the next page.

Annual Required Contribution

The Parish Government's Annual Required Contribution (ARC) is an amount actuarially determined.in
accofdance with GASB 45. The Annual Regquired Contribution (ARCY) is the sum of the Normal Cost plus
the contribution-to amortize the Actuarial Accrued Llablllty (AAL): A level dollar, open amortization

period of.30'years. (the maximum.amortization period allowed by GASB 43/45) bas been used for the.

postemployment benefits. The total ARC for the fiscal year beginning January‘1, 2013 is $1,261,874 as.set
forth below:

Medical
Normal cost $ 107,764
30 year UAL amortization amount 1,099,771
Interest adjusted to year end 54,339
Annual required contribution (ARC) . $ 1,261,874
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(12) Post Employment Benefits (continued)

Net Post-Employment Benefit Obligation'

The table below shows the Parish Government’s net Other Post-employment Benefit (OPEB) Obligation
for fiscal year ending December31, 2013:

Medical
Beginning net OPEB Obligation January 1, 2013 $ 1,562,519

Annuzl required contribution 1,261,874
‘Interest on net OPEB Obligation 70,313
ARC adjustment (67,973)
OPEB: cost 1,264,214
Contribution : -
Current year retiree premium (1,027,316)
Change in net OPEB Obligation 236,898

Ending net OPEB 'Obligation December 31, 2013 $ 1,799,417

The following table shows, the Parish Government’s annual post employment benefits .(PEB), cost,
percentage of the cost contributed, and the net unfunded post employment benefits (PEB) liability (asset):

Percentage of
Post Employment Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Annual Cost Net OPEB
Benefit - Ended . Cost- Contributed Obligation
Medical/Life- 12/312011 $ 1,101,240 84.90% $ 1,312,348
Medical/Life 123172012 $ 1,261,271 80.17% $ 1,562,519
Medical/Life 12/31/2013 $ 1,264,214 81.26% $ 1,799,417
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'(12) Post Employment Benefits (continued)

Fanded Status and Funding Progress

In the fiscal year ending.December 31, 2013, the Parish -Government made no contributions to.its.post
,employment benefits plen. The:plan- was'not funded ‘at all, has'no:asséts, and hence has a finded ratio.of
zero. As,of- December 31, 2013, the end of the fiscal year, the: Actuarial Accrued: Liability (AAL) was
'$25,280,287, which is defined as‘that portion, as determined by ‘@ partlcular actuarlal cost method (St.
Berpard'Parish Governmentuses-the Projected Unit: Credit Cost: Method), of thé actuarial present vale of

post-employment plan benefits:and expenses which is not provided by normal cost. Since the plan:was not
funded in fiscal yea.rsL2013 2012,:2011, the entire-actuarial accrued liability: of $25,280,827 was unfunded.

Actuaridl Accrued Liability (AAL) $. 25,280,827
Actuarial Value of:Plan Assets =
Unfiinded Actiial Aécrued Liability:(UAAL) $ 25,280,827
Funded Ratio (Act. Val. Assets/AAL) 0%
‘Covered Payroll (active plan members) $ 13,617,704,
UAAL s a perceritage of covered payroll 185.6%

vproba.blhty of évent far into the future. The actuarial valuanon for post-employment beneﬁts mcludes
‘estifnates and assumptions regardmg (1) turnover rate; (2) retirement rate; (3) health care cost’ trend rate;
{(4) mortality rate;,(5) discount:rafé. (investment réturn assumphon), and (6). the’ ‘périod.to which the casts
apply (past,. current, or future years:of service by employees). Actuarially. determined amouiits:are:subject
to continual revision as actual results are.compared fo past’expectations and.new estimates are made about
the future.

Actuarial ‘valuations involve .estimates of. the value of reported. amounts. and assumptions about the
probability -of event far:into the:future. The actuarial valuation for post employment benefits includes
estimates and-asSumptions regarding; (1);turnover rate;. (2) retirement rate;. (3) health care cost trend rate;
(@) mortality rate; (5) discount rate (mvesﬂnent return assumption); and (6) the period to-which the costs

apply (past, current, or-fiture years of service by employees) Actuarmlly determined amounts are subject-

to continual révision as:actiial results.are.compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future..
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(12) Post Employment Benefits (continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (continued)

The actuarial calculations are based on the types of benefits-provided under the terms of the substantive
plan;(the plan as'understood by the Parish-Government and its:employee plan:members)-at the time of the
valuation and on the patter of sharing costs between the Parish Government and its plan members to that
point. 'The projection of benefits for ‘financial reporting purposes does not exphcnly incorporate the
potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations on the patter of cost sharing between the Parish
Government and’ plan members in the fiture. Consistent with the long-term perspective of actuarial
calculations, the actuanal methods and assumptions used include techniques that are-designed to reduce
short-term volatility in actuarial liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.

Actuarial Cost Method

The ARC is determmed using the Projected Entry Age Cost Method. The employer portion of the cost for
retiree medical care. in each. fiiture year is determined by projecting the current cost levels using-the
healthcare- cost trend rate and discounting this projected amount-to the valuation date using the other
described perl:nentxactuanal assumptions, including the investment return assumption. (discount rate),
mortality, and turiover.

Actuarial Value of Plan Assets

The Plan was not funded during the year ended December 31, 2013 and has no assets at December 31,
2013. It is anticipated that if contributions are.made in future years, in future valuations a smoothed
market value consistent with Actuarial Standards Board ASOP 6, as provided in paragraph number 125 of
GASB Statement 45 will be used.

Turnover Rate

An age-related turnover. scale based on actual expenence as described by administrative staff -has been
used. Employee turnover-of 144.9%.of the turnover rate table utilized by the Pansh for its 2010 valuation
‘has been used. The adjustment reflects.actual Parish tirnover rates over the past five years:

Post Employment Benefit Plan Eligibility Requirements

Based on past experience, it has been assumed that entitlement to benefits will commence three years after
retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry). Medical benefits are provided to employees upon actual retirement.
The retirement eligibility (D.R.OP. entry) provisions (other than firefighters) are as follows for employees
hired prior to January 1, 2007: 30 years of service at any age; age 55 and 25-years of service, age 60 and 10
years of service; or, age 65 and 7 years of service. For employees hired on and after January 1, 2007 (other
than ﬁreﬁghters), the provisions are as follows; age 55 and 30 years of service; ‘age 62 and 10 years- of
service; or, age 67 and 7 years of service. The.retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) provisions for
ﬁleﬁghters are as'follows: age 55 and 12 years.of service; age 50 and 20 years of service; 25 years of
service at'any-age. Entitlement to bepefits -continues through Medicare to death.
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Investment Return Assumptions (Discount Rate)

GASB ‘Statemerit 45 states that thé investment return’ assumption should. be ‘the estimated long-terin
investment yield on the invéstments that'aré éxpected to be used to finarce the payrment of benefits (that:is,
for a plan which is:funded): Since the ARC is:not.currently being funded and:not expected to be:funded in
the near future; 3 4%.annual‘investment return has been used in this valuation.. This is a-conservative
estimaté of the: expected long-term return of a ‘balanced’ and conservative: investment portfoho ‘urider
_ proféssional manageiiient.

Health=€are Cost Trend Rate

For 2012 through 2014, the expected inciease in medical costs. is: developed by ‘observation and
extrapolation. of: plan expenence Thereafter, rates developed using-the baseline projection- of the:SOA
Long-Run ] Medical’ Cost-Trend Model and the followmg model input variables:

Rate of inflation _ 2:50%
Rate of Growthi'in real Income/GDP per Capita 1.70%
Income Miiltiplier.for Health Spending 14
Extra Trend due’ to Technology and other. factors 1.10%
Health*Share of GDP Resistance Pomt 25 00%
Year for lerl:mg Cost Growth to GDP Growith , 2075.

The 2013 trend assumptions are based on the renewal premium quotes. Medicare Part B trend is the lesser
of 5%:and the medical frend. Dental trend ‘is: 2% less than medical trend.

Mortality. Rate

The RP-2000- Health Annuitant tables (RP-2000),:set back-one:year; to project mortahty improvement, were
used: Thls ;i5-a: pubhshed mortaltty Inbleiwlnch was,demgned to: be‘used ‘in determmmg the value of
acciiied benéfits in defined benefit pension plans.

Methed of Determining Value of Benefits

The “value-of benefits” has been assumed-to be'the portion of the premium after retirement. datenexpected
to be paid by the. employer for each retiree.and has been used as the basxs for ca]culatmg the ;actuarial
present value; of OPEB beneﬁts to be - paid. The employer-pays 100% of the'cost of the medical benefits
(for: the: rétiree only), except; ﬁreﬁghters For:retired firéfighters,.the employer. pays 70% of. the cost of
medical benefits for both retiree and dependents. Themedical:rates provided are “blended? ratesifor-active
and retired- prior to Medicareeligibility for all retirees except-firefighters, which are “unblcnded” The

actuary.has thierefore; estlmated the total “inbiended” rates; where.appropriate, as reqiiired by GASB 45, for.

valiation purposes to be130% of-the blended rates prior to Medicare eligibility. After Medicare eligibility
at-age 65, the rates are “unblended” rates, as mandated by, GASB:45.
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Self Insarance/Risk M: ement

The Parish Government is exposed to various risks of loss related to general liability, auto liability,
workers' compensataon, tmemployment competisation, property, and group health benefits: Various-suits
and claims-afising from personal injury and property damage, some for substantial amounts, are pending
against the Parish Government, its insurers and others. In accordance with the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) in its Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 450-20-25-2, Contingencies, the
Parish Government's Internal Service Fund and the Division have provided for, in their financial
statements, estimated losses from the aforementioned pendirig suits and claims based on the estimated
ultimate cost of settling the claims, considering the effécts of inflation, recent claim settlement trends:and
other social and economic factors, including the effects of specific incremental claim adjustment expense,

salvage and subrogation. The Parish Government believes the ultimate settlement cost will not matenally

exceed the:amounts provided for the claims: The following table represents the-amountsirecorded in the
financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013.

. Business-type Activities:

"‘New-Claims ‘Benefits/
‘Balance and Changes Losses Balance
12/31/2012 in Estimates Paid 12/31/2013
Governmenta] Activities:
Automobile/General Liability $ 2292,823 § 557267 § (40,602): § 2,809,488
Workers Compensation 1,318,985 511,182 (518,635) 1,311,532
Total Governmental Activities $ 3,61'1,808= =$ 1,068449 § (559,237). $ 4,121,020

159942 §

Automobile/General Liability § 131,908 $ 159 (2962) $ 288,888
Workers Compensation 427,542 (57,178) (71,778) 298:586
Total Business-type‘Activities $ 559450 § 102,764 § (74740) $§ 587474 '

Criminal Court Fund

Louisiana Revised Statutes, at LSA-R.S. 15:571.11 require that one-half of any surplus remaining in the
Criminal Court Fund at year-enid shall be transmitted to the Parish’s General Fund. The Parish
Government did not transfer any of the surplus during-the year-ended December 31, 2013; however,
$138,907 was transferred to the General Fund subsequent to the year.then ended

Commitments and Contingencies
Grant Pmm_ s -

The Parish participates in a number of state and federal grant programs which are governed by various
rules, regulations, and compliance requirements. Costs charged to the respective. grant programs are
sibject to-audit and adjustment by the grantor agencies; therefore to the:extent that the Parish has not
complied with the respective rules, regulatlons, and compliance requirements. governing the grants, refunds
of any funds received-and the collectability of any related receivable as of December 31, 2013 may be
impaired.
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(15) Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Grant Programs (continned)

In August 2005, the’ Parish’ suffered significant damage from Hurricanes Katrina and Rita. The Parish
recovered damages from Katrina and Rita from the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).

The audits. of these fiinds and.claims recovered from FEMA are still subject to final audit and close out of
the respective-projects.. Any costs that would be disallowed would be recognized in the period agreed
upon by the grantor agency.and the Parish. These amounts are uncertain as of the report date -and therefore
no'amounts are recorded in the financial statements.

Construction Contracts

The Parish had several construction contracts.in progress during the year ended December 31, 2013.

Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities
Total amount of contracts $ 203,855,376 $ 134,593,624
Completed to date (52,109,903) (33,813,042)
Outstanding contracts $ 151,745,473 $ 100,780,582

Water and Sewer

During 1996, the St. Bernard Pansh Department of Public Works Water.and Sewer Division received an
administrative order from the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). The order stated that
the Division. has violated its National Pollutant Discharge Permit and the Clean Water Act. The 'EPA has
ellowéd the Division‘a reasonable penod to:take corrective action to eliminate and prevent recurrence of
the- noncompliant discharges cited in the findings or to submit a comprehensive plan fo eliminate and
prevent recurrence of violations cited in findings.

As of Décember-31, 2013, the'Division has filed a response to the deficiencies‘cited in‘the order-and has
placed into operation all improvements necessary to obtain compliance. However, the EPA has not
officially cleared the Division:of the violations. The Division can be assessed up to $27,500 per-day in
penalties for noncompliance with the order. There have been no assessments by the EPA or penalties
accrued in these financial statements.

During 2003, the ‘St. Bernard Parish Department of Public Works Water .and Sewer Division' received
several administrative orders. from the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). The orders
stated that the Division has violated its National Pollutant Discharge Permit and the.Clean Water Act. The
EPA has allowed the Division a reasonable period; for each adininistrative-order, to take corrective action
to eliminate and prevent recurrence of the: ‘noncompliant discharges cited in the findings or to submit a
comprehensive plan to eliminate and prevent recurrence of violations cited in findings.
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(15) Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Water and Sewer (continued)

The Parish has filed a response to the deficiencies.cited in the orders to obtain compliance. However, the
EPA has not officially cleared the Division of the’ violations. There have been no assessments by the EPA
or penaltles accrued in these financial statements.

Other Matters

The Louisiana Legislative Auditor’s office is currently performing procedures relative to the Parish. As of
the report:date, the procedures are not completed. The efféct, if any, on the financial statements is not
known.

(16) Litigation

The Parish and Water and Sewer Division are named as. defendants in a number of lawsuits arising
principally from claims related to personal ‘injury, negligence, wrongful demolition of property, and
property damage.. As discussed in Note 13, the Parish and Water and Sewer Division areprimarily self-
insured with respect to claims of these types. The Parish's insurance department and.its attorneys have
rreviewed these claims and lawsuits in orderto. evaluate the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome to the -
"Parish and to arrive at an estimate, if possible, of the amount or range of potential loss to the Parish.

As a result of such a review, loss contingencies, which. could be reasonably -estimated, have béen
categorized as "probable”, "reasonably possible”, and "remote", as defined in Governmental Accounting
Standards. Board Codification Section C50 - Claims and Judgments Loss contingencies for the Parish
amounting to $4,121,020 categorized as "probable" have been accrued in the Self-nsurance Internal
Service Fund. Loss contingencies for the Water and Sewer Division for "probable" cases amounting to
$587,474 have been accrued in the Water and Sewer Internal Service Fund. The Parish is subject to several
other lawsuits arising in the normal course of business which are adequately covered by insurance where a
range of loss cannot be reasonably: detenmined. These “reasonably ‘possible” loss contifigencies are:not
reflected in these financial statements.

The Parish has had litigation with the U.S. Department of Justice regarding the- Fair Housing Act. The
lawsuit was'settled in May 2013. Additional lawsuits exist and are ofi appeal between the Parish and other
organizations relating to compliance with Fair Housing regulations. The Parish and the Parish’s attorney
believe any amounts awarded by the Court would be covered by the Parish’s insurance.

‘The Parish.has been named as defendant in lawsuits alleging damage to properties adjoining :levees
following Hurricane Katrina in 2005. The Parish and the Parish’s attorney believe any- compensation
ordered by the Court would ultimately be paid by the U.S. Army Corp-of Engineers.
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Deficit Fund Balances
The following funds have deficit fund balances at December 31, 2013.

Fund Description - Fund Balance (deficit)
CDBG Disaster Fund $ (2:626,737)
Disaster Recovery Fund (2774215)
‘Workforce Investment Act (31,001)
Depirty Witness Fee (67,291)
Versailles Indistrial Park Sinking Fund (24,477)
Internal Service Fund - Self Insurance (1,255,158)

‘At December, 31, 2013, the CDBG Disaster Fund and the Disaster Recovery Fund (FEMA) had deficit
fund balances. The deficit fund balance in the CDBG Disaster Fund results primarily from expenditures
incurred. for:which the related revenue is deferred at December 31, 2013.  The deficit fund balance in the
Disaster Recovery Fund results primarily from expenditures incurred which the related revenue has not
been recognized or is deferred at December 31, 2013. The Parish is currently working on obtaining
incressed funding from CDBG and FEMA. The deficit fund balances described above will be funded
through the general fund or through future revenues of the Parish.

Note Receivable

At December 31, 2013, the Parish has an outstanding note receivable. of $600,000 plus accrued interest of
$144,000 due from the:St. Bernard Hospital Service District. The note was issued on January 13, 2009,
bas an interest rate of 6%, and matures on January 1, 2019.

New Pronouncements

The GASB issued Statement No..67, Financial Reporting for Perision Plans in June 2012, The objective of
this. Statement is to improve financial reporting by state and local governmental pension plans. This-
Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit
Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Deﬁned Contribution Plans, and No. 50, Pension Disclosures.

This Statement is effective for financial statements for fiscal years begmmng after June 15, 2013.

The GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions in June 2012, This
Statement -replaces the requirements of Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local
Govermmental Employers, as well as the requirements of Statement No. 50, Pemsion Disclosures.
Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pénsion Plans, revises existing standards of financial reporting
for ‘most pensnon plans. This Statement and Statement 67 establish a definition of a pension plan that
reflects the primary activitiés associated with the pension an’angement—determmmg pensions,
accumulating-and managmg assets dedicated for pensions, and paying benefits to plan members as they
come due. This Statement'is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Notés to Basic Financial Statements.

December 31, 2013

.New Pronouncements (continued)

The GASB issued Statement No. 71, Pension Tramsition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the
Measuremient. Date, in’ November 2013. The objective of this Statement is to address an issue regarding

application of the. transition provisions of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting: for
Pensions. The issue relates to amounts associated with contributions, if any, made by a state or local
government employer or nonemployer contributing entity to ‘a defined ‘benefit pensnon plan after the

‘measurement date of the-government’s beginning net pensnon liability. The provisions of this,Statement

are required to be applied simultaneously with the provisions of Statement No. 68.

Management of the Parish is currently assessing the impact of these new pronouncements on the financial
statements.

Subsequent Events

The Parish has evaluated subsequent events through July 10; 2014 the date the financial statements were
available to be issued and noted the following items requiring disclosure.

In April 2014 theParish issued Limited Tax Certificates of Indebtedness, Series 2014, in the amount of*

$2;200,000 to be paid over a 10 year period, due April 2024, for the purpose of acquiring,. constmc‘ung and
improving -fire protection facilities and purchasing fire trucks and other fire fighting equipment in the
Parish.

In May 2014, the State of Louisiana Bond Commission approved the Parish’s issuance of Certificates of
Indebtedness not exceeding $7,800,000. On July 1, 2014, the Parish issued Certificates of Indebtedness in
the amount of $2,160,000 to be repaid in February 2015. The remainder of the Certificates will be issued
as deemed necessary by the Parish in the future,
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

General Fund

Budget Comparison Schedule (GAAP Basis)
For the vear ended December 3], 2013

REVENUES
Taxes
Ad valorem
Sales and use
Other taxes, penalties, interest, ctc.
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
‘Federal grants
State funds, )
State révenue sharing (net)
Other
Fees, cherges; and commissions for services
Use of money and property
Other

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Other general government
Cepital outlay
Total expenditures

*  EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Opersti fors in .
Operating transfers out
Proceeds from issusnce of debt
Total other financing sources (uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE:
BEGINNING OF YEAR

END OF YEAR

See eccompanying independent auditors' report.

Schedulel

.Actuel on Variance -
Initial Final Budgetary Favorable
Budpet Budget . Basis .(Unfavorablc)
1008250 § 954250 § 931,460 §  (22,790)
9,860,000 12,000,000 11,883,558 (116,442)
999,000 1,097,500 1,076,092 (21,408)
1,185,500 1,202,850 1,206,237 3,387
674,950 7,370,432 2,909,087 (4;461,345)
158,150 800,000 6,838 (793,162)
- - 28,738 28,738
1,356,500 1,177,800 1,226,969 49;169.
- - 830 830
£341,200 521,600 623,566 101,966
15,583,550 25,124,432 19,893,375 (5,231,057)
11,557,000 15,289,975 14,114,750, 1,175,225
2,500 - 827,585 (827,585)
11,559,500 15,289,975 14,942,335 347,640
‘4,024,050 9,834,457 4,951,040 (4,883,417).
864,150 864,150 5,230,831 4,366,681
(4,888,200) (6,498,233) (10,622,822) (4,124,589)
- _3;150,000 - (3,150,000)
(4,024,050) (2,484,083) (5,391,991) (2,907,908)
- $  17,350374 (440,951) $ (7,791,325)
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Intergovernmental
Tatal révenues
Other general government
Capital cutlay
Total expenditures
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operiting transfers in
Operating transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

FUND BALANCE:
BEGINNING OF YEAR

END OF YEAR

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

Scheduale 2
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enl 13
Actual on Viriance -
Initial Final Budgetary Favorable
Budget Budget Basis (Unfavarable)
$ 18900000 § 7200000 § 9918447 $ 2,718,447
- 11,000 42 (10,958)
18,900,000 7,211,000 9,918,489 2,707,489
250,000 867,450 1,737,543 (870,093)
6,650,000 6,650,000 8,870,571 (2,220,571}
6,900,000 7,517,450 10,608,114 090,664
412,000,000 (306,450) (689,625)- (383,175)
(12,000,000) - (136) (136)
-(12,000,000) - (136) (136)
$ - $  (306,450) (689,761) § (383,311)
(1,936,976)
$ (2626737
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‘REVENUES:
Trtergovernmental
Federal greiits.

Total revenues

" Other géneral government
Capital outlay
“Total expenditures -
‘OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Opeiating transfers out
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE*

FUNDBALANCE:
‘BEGINNING OF YEAR

o L Schedule 3
ST;BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT .
 Disaster Recgvery Fund
arifion §¢ AP Basis
Far the year ended December 31, 2013
‘ B -Actual on ‘Variance -
Initial Final Budgetary Favorable
‘Budget Budget Besis (Unfavoreble)
$ 42,531,900 28925000 S 50336132 5 2141L132
- E 1,337 1337
42,531,900. 28,925,000: 50,337,469 21,412,469
9,096,000, 7,734,850 6,069,250 1,665,600
33224300 20,826,750 7,301,382 13,525,368
43,320,300 28,561,600 13370,632 15,190,968
211,600 363,400 36,966,837 36,603,437
ot L 262,252 ,.292252
(355,500) (355,500) (14,825304), _ (14,460,804)
(355,500) (355,500) _ (14;533,052) _ /(14,177,552)
$  (143900) .$ 7,900 2433785 § 22425885
(25,208,000)
$ .(2,774215)

END OF YEAR

* The net change in fimd balance was included in the budget as an appropmiation (i.c., spenddown) of fund balance.

See accompemying independent auditors’ rq':oxt.
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Schedule 4

Unfunded

Fiscal Year.  Actuarial Acmgrial.  Actuarial _ AALasa
Ended Valuation Value of Accrued Unfunded Funded Covered Percentage
_August31 Date Assets _ Lishility (AAL) __AAL Ratio Payrofl of Payroll
2011 1122011 - 13875925 13875925 0.0% 10,537,108 131.7%
2012 17112012 - 25280827 25,280,827 0.0% 13,617,704 185.6%
2013 11112013 - 25280827 25280827 0.0% 13,617,704 185.6%

‘Sec accompanying independent miitors'report.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND DESCRIPTIONS

December 31,2013

Special Revenue Funds.

Special revenue funds are used to account for revenues from specific taxes or other earmarked revenue sources,
which by law are designated to finance particular functions or activities of government: -and whlch, therefore,
cannot be diverted to other uses.

Criminal Court Fund

This fund was established under Section 571.11 of Title 15 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, Fines and
forféitures imposed by the District Court and District Attomey’s conviction'fees in criminal casesare transferred
to the Parish treasurer and deposited into a special “Criminal Court Furid” account. These funds-are used for
expenses of the criminal court of the Parish Government. Expenditures are made from this fund on motion of the
District Attorney and approval by the District Judges.

Consolidated Fire Protection District No, 1-2 Fund

This fiind is used 'to:account for the maintenance and operations of the fire protection facilities. Revenues are.
derived from, ad valorem taxes, state revenue sharing, and 2% of: the State of Louisiana; distribution of fire
* insurance premium taxes.

Council.-on Ag!ng Fund

This fund is used to account for the receipt and disbursement of 2 one-mill property tax:levy for the maintenance
and operation of the Senior Citizens Center.

Recreation Fund

This fund is used to account for the maintenance and operations of the. recreation facilities thhm the Parish.
Revenues are derived from ad valorem taxes and state revenue sharing.

Public Works Fund

This fund is used to account for the operations and maintenance of all parish infrastricture (roads, bridges, rights
of way, neutral grounds, including ditches and drainage, and operation of the mosquito control program).
Revenues of this fund are substantially derived from the Parish Transportation Fund, Parish Road Royalty Fund,
and a Parish ad valorem tax.

Road Lighting District No. 1 Fund

This fund is used to account for the maintenance of the lighting facilities of the roads, alleys, and public places
within the Parish. Revenues are derived from ad valorem taxes and state revenue sharing.

Workforce Investment Act Fund

This fund, formerly known as the Jobs Training Partnership Act Fund (JTPA), is used to account for the
collection and payment of Jobs Training Partnership Act funds and Workforce Investment Act funds on behalf of
other agencies, governing bodies, and/or other funds.




ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
NON:MAJOR GOVE NTAL FUND DESCRIPTIONS

:December 31, 2013

Special Revenue Funds (continued)
Health Fund

Thls fund i 1s used to account for the achvmes that contrlbute to' the health monitoring; semces prov1ded by the- .

'mamtenance expenseswelated to ﬂ:e faclhty Revanues are derived from.ad, valorem tixes.and State revcnue:
sharing.

' Communicdﬁohs)Fimﬂ

This fund is used to:account-for the cost:of the.911 Emergency Service-number. Revenues are derived.from.a
telephorie.tax:

Housing and:Redevelopment Fund
"This fund was established to-record the income and expenditures on:various-federal and state grants.

This ﬁ.md is'used to'account; for the, operatlons -of the; pubhc transit systém. The system is; , partly funded by ar
operating grant recenved from the Fedéral Transit Authonty

Garbage District #1 Fund

This fiid'is used to-account for thé Parish’s garbagecollection.and dnsposal system. These.services are presently
being .contracted. out to private firms. Revenues.are derived from ad:valorem-taxes,.state revenue:sharing, -and
. %% dedicated sales tax for garbage collection.

-Depiity Witﬂess Fee Fund
This fund is. used to aocount for the fees paxd to deputles for court'appearances. The fund is financed from court:

Hazard 'Mltlgtmn Fund

This ‘fiind :is used fo account-for the: proceeds-and expenses-associated’ with Hazard Mitigation Grant ngmm
funds.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND DESCRIPTIONS

December 31. 2013

Debt Service Funds

Debt service funds are used to account for the payment of interest and principal on all general obligation debt.
They do not include debt issued by the Proprietary Funds.

Versailles Industrial Park Sinking Fund

This fund is used to accumulate monies for the payment of special assessment bonds. These bonds -were uséd to
finance public:improvements deemed to benefit the properties against which the costs are assessed. The costs of
the project are estimated and property owners are assessed theit propomonate share. The property owner either
pays-the assessment within 60 days or over a 10-year period. Interest is charged on the unpaid assessments at the
rate of 6:25%. Bond principal and interest are paid with the monies provided by payments on the assessments
and rélated interest.

Bond Reserve 1996 Fund

This fund was.established to comply with the bond resolutions:of the. Public Improvement Bonds Series 1996.
This fund is used to'account for a $274,000 reserve as required by the 1996 issue.

2003 Sales Tax Refanding Fund.

This fund-is used to accumulate monies for the payment. of bonds dated January 1, 2003, which were issued in
part to refund the 1996 Series Public Improvement Bond issue: The bonds are secured from the proceeds of three
separate special one-half of 1 percent sales and use taxes effective July 13, 1965, July 15, 1969, and December 7,
1976.

1990 and 1997 General Obligation Bond Fund

This fund is used to accumulate monies for the payment of bonds dated February 1, 1990 and December 1, 1997.
The 1990 Bonds were used for the purpose of constructing a jail and detention faclhty and the acquisition of any
necessary equipment and fumishing associated with the facility. The 1997 bonds were used to defease
$4,125,000 of the previously issued 1990 bonds. The bonds are secured by an ad valorem tax:.

2012 Sales Tax Refunding Fund

This fund is used to accumulate monies for the payment of bonds dated July 17, 2012, which were issued in part
to refund the 2003 Sales Tax Refunding Bonds and 2004 Sales Tax Bonds. The bonds are secured from the:
proceeds of three separate special one-half of .1 percerit sales:and use taxes-effective.July-13, 1965, July 15, 1969,
and December 7, 1976. ,
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND DESCRIPTIONS

December 31,2013

Capital Projects Funds

‘The_capital projects 'funds account for all resources:used for. the acquisition. and/or-coiistruction of capital.
facilities-of the Parish,, mcludmg those fifiticed. by special assessnients. These'funds do not include:acquisitions:
and/or construction for. Proprietary Funds..

Urban m Roadway  Reconstriction Fand

This: fund ‘is 'usedito-account for. the-costs-associated. with roadway reconstruction in various areas of the Parish.
‘The transfers from the general fund financed the reconstruétion.

‘ nrm_mne Reconstruction Fund

This-fund.is‘used to:account for monies recéived to recoristruct the Patish due to Hurricane Katrina..

- Courthouse Capital Fund.

This fund is used to account and pay for the cost associated, with’ improvements and mainiteriance to: the:
Courthouse.. Thie soice of fundmg for the' nnprovements will be from transfers:from the Ctriminal Court Fund

- 2003 Sales Tax Bond Funad

“This fund is’ used.to account:for’costs of construction: for concrete street repairs, a-new animal 'shelter, and other
various:improvements.

1990, Geneml'Oi)liggﬁﬁn-Bond:Fﬁhd~

This fund'is used to account for the construction‘of a jail and juvenile detention facility and the acqmsmon of, any
‘necessary equipment and furnishings associdted with the. faclllty

‘Rebuild St. Bernard Fund
This fundiis.used to account for funds received to febuild the Parish after Huiricdne Katrina.

67




ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Non-major Governmental Funds - Combining Balance Sheet Seiwdn'$
Deceniber-31, 2013

Spacial Revonos Fands
Consalidag B ] Romd® Warkdoreo Urben Moy
Court Disirict Na, 12 on Aging __ Degurtzoemn Wala DisrictNo. 1 Aot Hoadth ¢ __ Communlestions __Redoyclopment Administration
Casb and cash équivalenty $ s 3 174 'S B8847 8 G717 S 899 0§ M2 S8 A4 3 6240 0§ 3,661 ] 2216351 8 1530991
[Enrvestmenty - - - . . - . - - - .
Recelvahles (st of sllowsnces for
uncolisctibles): -
Salay txon - - - - . - - - . - -
Ad valorom taxes . 1,199,068 pL- 5] 634,560 192,033 335,004 - 13 - . .
Itorpovermnmental - 4TI 090 - 35,964 51077 . B B B 192271 398360
_, Other 15,653 - . 3 wnsn - - - . - .
Drom from other funds - . - - 294,000 - . - 6312 1,396 -
Prepaids - 21284 2,693 33,727 27,687 - - - -2,651 2,166 2,503
Tota) mxty $ 3!9e 12 3 llilla”! $ !a’ﬂ’ ] m! ] 108,164 3 !!ﬁ - 3 “.754 $ M $ EEI $ Elﬂ $ 233 H“
LIARILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND
FUND BALANCES
LIAHILITIES }
Acooumts prysbls  § 35,549 ] 471520 $ 506 s 211,196 $ 64040 H 64,319 1,741 § 550 H 4473 s 40344 1 110428
insga payshia - - - - 92,933 - . . . - 27410
Salarics and payroll dedotions paysblo - 425,430 - 6, 29,078 - 3,059 - 57,029 307
Short-team cenifiyizs of dcbtaocss . * 6,206,000 - - - - - - - -
Dos to otber s 384,086 2,049,307 - 3718 1121341 27335 0953 - 7892 .
Total Habificies 420,608 9,159,787 808 270,342 2,084,409 343857 -95,738 3948 44T 10326) 21210
DEFERRED INFLOWS - 194338 8,025 377493, 21,733 1,788 .- 4,431 : . -
FUND BALANCES '
‘Nemspendshis sroousts
Prepald ey - U4 2,685 53,727 27,687 - - - 2581 2,166 2508
Rextrictad for: '
Dbt servico - - - . . - . - . . .
Foderl programs - - - - - - (31,001) - - 2,264,937 2,090,741
Courell o aging. - - 383,37 - I N - . . . .
Road lighting - . . B - - - . - - .
 Health . - - - - - . 795,290 - - -
Conxmmications - - . . . - - - 88777 - -
Pobllo exfity . 1305153 . . - - - . . -
Conmmitiad 1
Assiged W
Cowrt oporations 138,907 . - . - - - - . - .
Racreation - - - 1,180,614 - - - - -. -
Unazrigned - - - [ve X108 - = : - =
Total fimd batmocy 132,907 128,642 313932 1234341 - - (31,001) 793290 aen 226011 209,246
Total liabilities, deferred infloves, N . . i .
oad fsnd balenocs $_ B9S2 3 1Ll05s o3 3763 3 2090975 3 2io6le4 B 3s2ex 3 64754 § 60560 8 Jmsol 8 23723W 1331456
Soe Y maditors’ ropart.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
Non-major Governmental Funds - Combining Batance Sheet Sohedto 3
December 31, 2013 (eoorimmd

Bpecial Revars Fnds (contiuerd) Dbt Scrvies Pands
Oubege Voudla' Bood 2003 1990w 1957 012 Urbaa
Dilstrict Deputy _Feord Indwmtrisl Raores Baled Tux Qo Sales Tax Syrem
— Nai _ WieraFe _ Mgt Tonl _PokSikimg 1996 _ Refiudig  _ Bowh _ Bofuidig Tl Roweay
$ mosle S N 3 2ssem 8 iudid 3 a8 [ S8 W3 aesy 5 Lz 3 e
576,330 - - 576,530 - - - . . P
192,00 - - 11,459,382 . - - . - . .
. - &9 1007385 - - - - . .
‘4 4120 - 1074016 - . - . . . .
. . . 302,258 - - - - ‘- - -
1,029 - - 113,744 - - - . - . .
S 24011 § 15453 A 97 .8 Tamen 3. an 8 23 3 S, A ;i 9 gass s 120712 5 swson

$ Mesm 3 M 3 WA § LRI 3 - s S | -3 - -8 N .
- - 70,400 190,365 - - - . - - 1,64

12261 - 1734 839,136 . . - . - . .

- - . 6,206,000 - - . - 2 - -

1,678,489 s imns oL 2439 - - - - 2447 -
241750 B 120546 16453184 24890 . - . - 2451 13,64
21,788 - LITogl 200757 = - - - . -
1029 . . 113,744 - - - - - - .

. . . . QAT vz - 392187 10,50 1,232,224 -

- . . AIULYT - . - . B . .

- - . 313,297 - . - - - . .

. - 793,290 - . - - . . .

. - - ssm - - - . - V- -

. . - 1,808,350 - . - . R . -

. - . . - . . - . 753%

- - - 138,907 - - - . . . -

- i - 1180614 - . . . : . .

- [67,291) - (54,970 . . . . . - . .

1,029 {67291) - 5,032,646 EAAT 99 . 92187 853508 1292224 733%

$ 2450112 3 13455 3 2376267 3 _Tapan  $ a3 929 8 S 3w 8 s 3 1257am 8 oo
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

Non-major Governmental Funds - Combining Balance Sheet

70

= S Schodule S
December 31, 2013 - (et
2003 1990 Tota! Noo-Major
Hurrioms Canrthoume Bales Tax Gonzral Robolld Cavermmentsl
Roomgimetion Capitel - Bonds Obligetion Borsd St Bemrd Towl Pondy
Caxh vl cash oquivalents s 3382709  §° 7846 “2609 S 29 40293  § 1852210 8 19,689,446
fvesteeats T . . . H = .
Rocxivables (oet of allowmnoe o
Bales toncy - - - - . - 576,530
Ad valorem texes . - . - - - 11,485,352
Intergovormnental . . . . . - 1087389
Ocher 225,000 - - - . 225,000 1,299,016
Do from othey fandx 3423,69 100,000 . . - 3,523,433 3,425,691
Prepsids - - . - - - 113,744
Total exsets 3 7042 S STME 3 452609 8 229 4029 3 9300540 8 33,051 168
LIAHILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWE, AND
' FUND
LIARILITIES )
Aceoey payskle s a8 . .8 B - S 4135 8 3,420,421
Retainzgs paysbln 17413 - - - N 31447 21812
Salaries end payrell dedtuctions payabia - - . . - - | a39236
Short tm cartificates ““"Fh“’ " ) i, . : " s
Duo o other fnds 1,193,856 - - . - 1,193,866 7092518
Toel linbilities 1253030 . . - 1,256,672 17,744,754
DEFRERED INFLOWS .. . . - - . 2007373
FUND BALANCES
Noospeadahle smounty;
Propaid koms - - . - - 13,744
Restricted far; - . N
" Debt servien - - - - - 1,224
Fodaral programs - - - - - 424,697
Councl] an aging - - - - . a7
Rod Eghting . - - . - .
Cammunicaticas - - - . - ny
Pukilo afiay - - N - - - 1805358
Cepital octiry - - 452,609 - - 452,609 452,509
Cormmitted to: :
 Coplud cutlzry - 897,346 B - 40,193 1,803,729 1,803,029
Assigred to:
Court operstions - - - - - - 138,507
Beoration - - - - - - 1,100,614
Resovery 1770104 - - - - 177,104 1,778,104
Unsxxigond - - - - 29 (4.749)
Total fnd heisers S.778,104 WIS 452,609 40293 033871 AW 1
Tota! Habslitics, defirvad kafics, ] )
ond ford x $ 004 S 7345 & 452609 3 229 40293 .8 5300543 30,051,160
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B mumm
Capinl ey
Tota! cxpeaditary

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF HEVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTAEE FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Openting tramdins in.

- Operxting trengfiey ot

Totsl other fwxncing mxrces (tees)

ERCESS (DEFICIKNCY) OF REVENUES

AND OTHER SOURCES OVER

EXFENDITURES AND OTHER USES
FUND BALARCXS - REGINNING OF YEAR
FUND BALANCES - XND OF YEAR

ST.B

ARD

SH GOVERNMEN'

Schedule6

Non-major Governmental Funds - Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes'in Fund Balances (continued)
December31, 2013
Sypental Yovermm Pundy
[ Rend Wodktrce Urben bass
Crimina) Fire Protoztion Comed Recreetion Poblio Lighting Investmert Hourg et Tomportsten
Coan Diwrict Na. 12 wmAgny  _ Deputmet | ek Districa No '} Az ‘Health Covwnumication __ Radevelopenent  __ Admindsation
1} - 3 l.“w.i“ 3 303,03 $ .emD038 3 960,080 . 3 wmms ] - 4 l”.llz [} - ’ - L -
- uﬁ- 7] 576 "o m : 166 mao © .
- 2050 - . 15020 - - - . - -
1784809 - - 2067 - 247,749 . - 1647319 Limsa
- 1,w; . 53 1.3:.': 3,016. - 1548 - - -
- 18,60 N 47,500 1,733,800 - - . . - 2
. 13430 . 2138309 F3its - - - - - 2,783
nLsu - - - - . . . . . .
a1 w53 : 11.9i ) v,u; —_ - i 5 s00 AT 2488
s 10456434 i _303,089 3,110,853 2,835,647 m,g' AT2. 749 196 493 %30 1837107 1286682 -
52,283 . . . - : 275 : . - Mg
. 943,790 - . - . . . 203,800 N :
. - - - 3.12,28% 78197 - - . . .
. - - 1,913,604 . A . . . . .
- - wim - - - - 60,206 - 6161678 -
12197 wpm: ) Lo 1.31_1‘5:; ‘asner3 : ; i 295 248 a1, 121.- o
65,149 ‘9639757 403,13 2871289 358,134 775,197 248719 50806 28361 164258 1,000,055
197,666 R66Z (100,049 76,601) Q.z74%) o) 21,00 16,037 90,979 @22,151) 26,527
. 1,420,844 - 197,298 a1 361,134 - . . . .
ﬂwm - - - - - - s .
—{163.507) - L4884 - lsnse 1360 361334 . - .
€34 2295485 (100,044 003 07 e ‘24,030 vetsr 2099 Q2190 war
145148 (A3 Q397 17,604 oM7Y 2479 @an 659, 27449 2994274 1,505,615
S_1m07 8 LDes2. 3 Imsm $ LoauM 3 - 3 - 3 _gioon 3 Twaxo S usem S 2718 % 093,248
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT Schedule 6
Non-major Governmental Funds - Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (continued)
December 31, 2013 -
_ Deixt Sarvien Pands
Curbagn . Versailles . Bood 200 <1950 and 1997 012 Urbaa
District Depay” Hazzrd Tadustrlal Roave. Sl T co Saley Tr System
Mol WitsesFoo | __ MGtigetion . Toal - PuwkGinking 199¢ __ Refmding Bends - fetmding Toal ‘Rosdvay
..
Ad valareny 3 9006 8 - 3 - 8 1me S PO s N n 9 - 8 7 s -
Sules d Uso 3961,156 - - *3,961,186 - . B B . . .
Otbor trery, pemltics, kmeten, 622, = - - 389,963 - - - 4 - 4 b
Lieegey wad pociny - - . 37170 . - - - - - .
Intorgovermmen] | '
Foderd grazey . - 3,038.46¢ 14,124,574 - - - - . -
State bty
8tato Fvermy charing () 7588 . - 2290 - . . . . - .
. - - - 2227474 - . . . . R .
Pezs, charpes, ind conmnlrrions o eervices . ®m - 2328878 . - - . - . -
Fiack i forfeltorns - - 181,524 - . - . . - -
Uss of monay tnd property . - - . . - . . - - .
Pub: panty .- - - e . . - N . - .
Odber - .. ‘0 362,174 - - - - - - -
Totat foyenrry 4,925,605 - 417 Jmsace -35,534,142 . - - - /3 - ‘76 2
2 .
Gt porvemmen
Juticial - 87 - 8.7 - - - . . . .
Oty grmg) govermenent _ - - 1038 3,504,055 - - - - . - 17,563
Pubiio patiay - . . 2710550 - - - . . - .
Publio works 4602338 - - 9,129,794 - - - N . - .
Caeare sod reeestion . - . L913,604 - - - . . - B
Hexlth end welfery - - . 6,625,617 - - - - - B -
Debt srvics
Principal - - - - 220,000 - - 280,000 -
nasnet mod) fiacal charges N . - - B Ln6 . 131650 13223986 -
Capiual outlay 20,600 . 184461 5.091.247 . - . . - .
Total sxpenditre 4amen o 3037114 6,531,690 - - mng - - 1316850 1,602,566 1238
(DEFICIERCY) OF REVENUES . ; -
OVER EXFENDITURES 16,667 (39.304) 1,380 (997,545) Qe L] (1314030 {160,450 (7319
OTHER FINANCING SOURCEA (USZ5) . - .
_Opentiny tanmlens b 909,5M 29,000 . 4380612 - - 10 . 1,708,401 1,710,384 02
Opendig eyt out - - (1350 -{163,859) . . B . Bty e .
Total ofher fimmelng Koxrres (avel) swrsm 25,000 0350) 421475 - - ‘L5m . 1708147 1,710,130 &02
(PRFICIKNCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTHER SGURCES OVER
DXCENDITURES AND OTHER USES 1,132,641 Q4,300 - 1217,308 - - onnn % 91,297 107,640 (650m
FUND BALANCIS . BEGINIING OF YEAR 0.190.613) 2787 - 1315441 AT -] 7 N, aman L2458 52298
VUND BALANCRS - KRD OF YEAR $ 1o 3 (sray 3 EOR B - U S N 1Y N | 929 8§ o S miwy s s s 1z;aa4 3 w733
* Beo accompanying bfependent sxilion' report.




BERN PARIS RNMENT

Non-major Governmental Funds - Combining Statement of Revenues. endi and.Changes in Fund Balance;
December 31, 2013
—Caplul Projocts Pondy .
“20M 1990 . Total Noo-Major
Recoustystion Capliat Beods. . _ ChlguimiBond = .8 Bemud ‘Tl Purids
HEVENURS
T
Ad valoroo H - s - 1 - $ - $ - $ - 3 11,892,041
Saloy e Use s - - - . - 3,961,188
Oxhér taxes, pealties, intrress, eta. s - - - ] ] 336,025
Licenses and pecrdas . - . - - - 37170
Intrgovenmzenl
Pedensl graco - - - - - - RLAPTX )
Stae s
Porizh tmxtpxrtation fonds - . - - . - .
Btats revemm dhwring (peg) ., - - - - . 32290
Otier ] - - - - - . 2137474
Fora, chavges, e commizrinns fiv dcrviees . - . - - - 21870
Fiocs end finthitares . - . - . - 18,54
Une of momty ead property - - . - - - .
Pohlic grants - - - - - B .
Ocher - - 1321 - - u_zl 38,498
Total reveron . . - g . 3 139 35,938,597
EXPENDITURRS
Genonl government
Tudicial - - . - - . (7%, ]
Ofter grral povernmens . - - - . 1750 340
Publlis ity - - - - - - 9,85
PubiBo warka - - B - - . 5,189,754
Calturs ead recrestion - - - - - - 1,913,604
Health e welfire - . - - . - 6,629,617
 Prinaipal . - B - - . - 280,000 -
Toterigs wed fiscal chargre - . - - - 1322,966
Capital ouzday 70306 120528 - - - 190,834 3,202,081
' Toul epeading 70306 120523 - - - 208397 23342653
EXCESS (DETICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXFENDITURES (78.308) (120,528) 1321 - 5 Qo7.00n ,207,086)
OTHER FIRARCING SOURCES (USEE) . i . i
Opeistiog traestns b - - nIm - . 1,000 AN C 616880
Opersting cwmdty out R ) —c <.t} 0387 - CER o1/, ) N ) -0
Tota] other ftmmcing soroes (i) (48 (274,509) 333 - 3000 _ (209360 71530
EXCEES (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
AND OTBER SOURCES OVER
EXFINDITURES AND OTHER USKS 357 NG 0,714 - 5,008 “16578) 2,908,267
FUND BALARCES - KEGINNING OF YEAR SBRAS  _ Limam 31008 pr:] 3528 34350545 11390574
VUND BALANCES « KND OF YRAR s lod B mmas 3 es2em 8 25 3 43w 3 amwen 3 18298841
& o xadlton’ report.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUND DESCRIPTIONS

December 31, 2013

Water District No. 1

This fund is used to account :for the ad valorem taxes and state.revenue shanng monies received for the
maintenance, operations, and debt service of its district. The portlon of monies relating to maintenance:and
operations are transferred to.the Division, which pays the operating expenses of Water District No. 1.

Water District No. 2

This fund is used to account for the ad valorem taxes and state revenue shn'ring monies received -for the
maintenance, operations, and debt .service of its district. The portion of monies: relating to maintenance and
operations are transferred to the Division, which pays the opemtmg expenses of Water District No. 2.

Sewer District No. 1

This fund is used to account for the ad valorem taxes and state revenue sharing monies received for the
maintenance, operations, and debt service of“its district. The portion of monies relating‘to’ maintenance: and
operations.are transferred to the Division, which pays the operating expenses of Sewer District No.,1.

Sewer District No. 2

This. fund is used to account for the ad valorem taxes and state revenue sharmg monies received for the

maintenance, operations, and. debt service of its district. The portion of. monies:relating to maintenance and
operations.are transferfed to the Division, which pays the operating expenses of Sewer District No. 2
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Water Wt Sewerage Sewarzgs
s Dz Dises
No. ! No.2. No. 1 No.Z! Tatat
ASSETS
Restricted assety:
Cash and cash equivalents )
Orther debt servico ecoounts s %6977 $ 133528 S 1,064 $  11149% $ 353,165
Total current axsets 96,977 133,528 11,164 111,456 353,165
PROPERTY, FLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plent, and equipmer, st cost - - - - -
Less. Accammleted depreciation - - - - -
Property, plant, end oquipment, met - - - . .
Total pssets s 96971 $ 13358 $ ILi66 3§ 101496  § 3531635
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
LIABILITIES
Tota) lishiliries s - s - s - s - ] -
.NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of relsted debt
Restricted for
Capital I and repl end systom impr - - - - -
Debt terviea ' 96,977 133,528 11,164 111,496 35,1
Total net position $ %977 $ 1358 § 1064 § 111496 S 353165

Ses scempanying independent muditors repart
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OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services;
Onher operating revenves

Other expenses

Total gperating mupenses
Operating incame (loss)
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Sales tax
Restricted sssety

Total non-operating ravenpcy (expenses)

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
BEFORE TRANSFERS

Transfers in
Trensfers out

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION: .
REGINNING OF YEAR

RND OF YEAR'

Schedule 8

Water W‘?_ﬂ' S B 8 Atia -
Distzict. District Distder District
No. N6.2 No. 1 .No.2 “Total
- 3 . 3 - 3 B -
98,977 131,528 11,164 111,496 353,165
35971 $ m& S Ililﬂ $ llli496 N mll“
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Total

msunowsmagongmmagnvmss
ERATING ACTIVITT s

"Cash roctivad from austomen axd wizis [ -
c-shpldmmﬂm ufmtbnuvh: - - -

1 Cash paid to mplojees ) - - -
Net cxch providad by opetating activitey - . = =

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CANTAL MCING ACI'WITIIH

Ndmmmdunﬂs ’ - . - -
Nuh&p&kﬁdbymc@iiﬁmﬂidvﬁ i 2 .

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchass of capital sssets ’ - - -

Net cash trizd i capital e iehited firancing activities - -

mn.owsmumvmmmnm
Pm&mnlad‘m - . -

et cash provides by capitel aed retaind i aetivities - = ..

o =

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - - -

CAB!I AND CASH EQUIVALENTS; .
" BEGINNING OF YRAR 96,977 133,528 11,164

115496

END OF YEAR : 3 77 5 uEsw. s . 116

%

A

353,165 -

353,165

- - - -
= - - .- ,-
.3 - S -




ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND DESCRIPTIONS
December 31,2013
Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or

agency ‘to other departments or agencies of the government and to other government units, on a ‘cost
reimbursement basis.

_Self-Insurance Fund

The Self-Insurance Fund accounts for monies accumulated to provide automobile, property damage, and
worker’s compensation for which the Parish is self-insured.

Water & Sewer Self-Insurance Fund

The Water & Sewer Self-Insurance Fund accounts for monies accumulated to prowde automobile, property
damage, and worker’s compensation for which the Division is self-insured.
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Schedule 10

Mmmm g
: B. . s- m El ! E -
December 31,2013
Weter and
Self Sewer Self
o Insurance Insurance Tatal
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents s 2070449  § 532445  § 2,602,894
Tnvéstments 864,327 . 864,327
Due from other funds 286,909 820472 1,107,381
Prepaids 4203 - 4203
Interest receivable - - -
Total current assets 3,225,888 1,352,917 4,578,805
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant, and equipment, at cost - - -
Less: Accumulated depreciation - - -
Property, plent, and equipment, net : - - -
Total assets $ 325888 $ 1352917 § 4578805
LIABILITIES 'AND NET POSITION
5 inkilitics: _
Acoounts and other payables $ 68902 $ 183§ 69,085
Self insurance claims payahlo: 4,121,020 §87,474 4,708,494
Saleries and payrolt deductions payable 291,124 - 291,124
Due to other furids - 261,292 261,292
Total current ligbilities. 4,481,046 848,949 5,329,995
Total liabilities 4,481,046 848,949 5,329,995
NET POSITION
Restricted for.
Sclf insaramce (1,255,158) 503,968 . (751,150)
Total net position $ (1255158 § 503968 8 (751,190)

See acconipanying indspendéut auditors e




ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

Internal Service Fimgl

And ANges

r the year ended December 31, 2013

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services:
Other operating revenues
Total operating revenues.
OPERATING EXPENSES'
Personal services and related benefits
Professional services
Insurance premiums
Other expenses
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest expense and bank fées

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
BEFORE TRANSFERS

Transfers in
Transfers out

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION: N
BEGINNING OF YEAR

END OF YEAR

See accompanying independent auditors report
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Schedule 11

Water and
Self Sewer Self
Insurance Insurance Total

$ 1,054,182 § 214,700 1,268,882
1,054,182 214,700 1,268,882
182,194 - 182,194
47,557 *2,200 49,757
1,168,095 104,228 1,272:323
4,184 - 4,184
1,402,030- 106,428 1,508,458
(347,848) 108,272 (239,576)
253 - 253
253 - 253
(347,595) 108,272 (239,323)
(347,595) 108,272 (239,323)
(907,563) 395,696 (511,867)
$ (1255158 § 503,968 (751,190)




Schedule 12

ST, PARIS
internal Service Funds
Compining Statément of Cash Flowy
Por the year ended December 31, 2013
Water and
Self - Sewer Seif
Insurance Insurance Total
'CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipty from interfund services provided B 1,054,182 H 214,700 s 1,268,882
Paymexts for claims {856 277) (81,635) {937,962)
Net cash provided by operating nctivities 197,905. 133,015 330,920
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net payments to otber finds - (214,700) (214,700)
Net cash used in non-capital financing activities - (214,700 Q14,708)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investments (253) . @53)
Interest received 253 - 253
Net cash provided by capital and retated financing activities - - -
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 197,905 (81,685) 116,220
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,872 544 614,130 2,486,674
END OF YEAR 3 2!070!449 $ 532,445 5. 2802.8%
"RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (Ioss) $  (47848) § 108272 § (239,576)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Decrease in prepaid expenses 4,808 - 4,308
Increase in accounts payable and accroed expenses 539,030 24,743 563,773
Increase in salaries payabla 1915 <. 1915
+Net cash provided by operating activities $. 197905 § 133018 § 330,920



ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

Schedule of Council: Members' Compensation:

‘or the Veir.ended December:31, 2013

Council Member Amount -
George Cavignac, Councilman at Large:(West) $ 8,400
Guy Mclnnis; Chairman 7,200
Ray,Lauga, Jr., District A- 7,200
Nathan J. Gorbaty, District B. 7,200
Richard J..Lewis, District C 7,200
. Casey Hunnicutt, District D, 7,200,
Matue] "Monty" Montelongo, District E. 7,200
: $ 51,600

See.accompanying independent auditors' report.
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EPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
'REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT
AUDITING STANDARDS

To the St. Bernard Council
Chalmette, Louisiana

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally ‘accepted in-the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General. of the United States, the financial. statements of the. governmental
activities, the business-type activitics, each-major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
St. Bemnard Parish Government (the Parish), as of and for the year-ended December 31, 2013, and the
related notes to the: financial statements, which collectxvely comprise the Parish’s basic financial
statements and have issued our report thereon dated July 10, 2014.

Internal Conn:ol over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Parish’s internal

.control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the andit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Parish’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Parish’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was:for the limited. purpose described in the preceding paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies:in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies-and therefore, material weaknesses. or significant deficiencies may exist that weré ,
not identified. However, as described in the-accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we ;
identified certdin deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and other
deficiencies that we consider to be material weakunesses and significant deficiencies. !

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation. of a control does not allow [
management .or employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to: prevent; or |
detect and correct misstatements on a’ ‘timely* basis. A material weakriess:is a deﬁclency, or a combination !
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonablé possibility:that a material misstatement L
of the entity’s: financial statements will not be prevcnted, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We 1
consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as }
items 2013-1, 2013-2, 2013-3, and 2013-6 to be material weaknesses. |

30th Floor - Energy'Centre = 1100 Poydras Street  +  New Orleans,.LA 70163-3000 -  Tel:800.201.7332
One. Gallerla Bivd, Suite 2100 -  Metairie, LA70001 < Tel: 504.837.5990 -  Fax: 504.834.3609




A significant deficiencyis a deficiency, or a combination of. deficiencies, in’internal control that is less
severe than ‘a material weakness, yet unportant enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. We consider the- deﬁclency -described in the accompany schedule of findings and questioned
costs as item 2013:5 tobe a significant deficiency.

Compliance and Other '

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Parish’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement; we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination ‘of financial statement amounts, However, providing an opinion on compliaice with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests discloséd instances of noncompliance or other matters that are requu'ed to be reported
.. under Government Auditing Standards -and which are described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and -questioned costs as items 2013-4, 2013-7, 2013-8, and 2013-9.

The Parish’s Response to Findings

The Parish’s:response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. The Parish’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion-on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this Teport is solely to describe the: scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of.that testing, and not to provnde an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s.internal.
control or on compliance. This report. is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Audrtmg Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.’
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for. any. other purpose.

OMithunit+ Nkl

Metairie, Louisiana
July 10, 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON AL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the St. Bernard Council
Chalmetts, Louisiana

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the St. Bernard Parish Government (the Parish)’s compliance with the types of
complmnce reqiiirémeiits described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that:could have
a direct-and material effect on each of the Parish’s major federal programs for the year-ended December
31, 2013. The Parish’s major federal programs are identified in the:summary of auditor’s results section
of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibili

Mansagement i .responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Parish’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of:
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America;
the standards-applicable to financial andits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of .States, Local
Governments, and.Non-Profit.Organizatiors. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we.
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whethiér noncompliance with'the types of
comphance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the. Parish’s: oomplmncc
with those requirements and performing. such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that: our audit provides.a reasonable basis ‘for our-opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. However, our andit does not provide a legal detefmination of the Parish’s compliance.

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Section 8- ing Choice Voucher Grant

As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the Parish did not:comply
with requirements regarding Special Tests and Provisions that are applicable to its Section 8 Housing
‘Choice Voucher ‘Grant as described in finding 2013-7. Compliance with such requirements is necessary,
in our opinion, for the Parish to comply with the requirements applicable to that program..
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Qualified @_ inion on Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Grant

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in-the Basis for Unqualified Opinion paragraph,
‘the Parish, complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance. requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Grant for the
year ended December 31, 2013.

Unmodified Opinion o of the Other Major Federal Programs

In our.opinion, the Parish, complied, in all material respects, with the types of oomphanoe requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each:of its other major federal programs
identified in the :summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costsfor the year-ended December 31, 2013.

.Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures discloséd instances of noncompliance, which is requued to be
reported in‘accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which is:described-in the: accompanymg schedule
of findmgs and- questioned costs as items 2013-8 and 2013-9. Our opinion on each major federal
program is not modified with respect to these matters.

The Parish’s ‘responses to the ‘noncompliance findings ‘identified in oir audit are described in the’
accompanying schedule.of findings and questioned costs.- The Parish’s responses were not subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on.

the responses:

‘Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Parish is responsible- for. establishing and'maintaining effective internal:control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and:performing our
. audit of compliance, we considered the Parish’s internal control over comphance with the type of
requirements that could have a-direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedurres that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test-and report on internal-control over- complmnce in.
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opunon on the
effectiveness of internal control oveér compliance. Accordingly, we do.not express an opinion_on the.
effectiveness of the Pansh s internal control over compliance.

Our consideration. of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding. paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over comphance
that might be-material weaknesses: or- significant.deficiencies and therefore, material. weaknesses of
significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we-identified
certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider.to be material weaknesses and
significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when.the design or operation of a ¢ontrol over

compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned

functions, to prevent, or-detect-and correct, noncompliance with.a-type of compliance requirement. of a

federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
4 .




deficiency, or combination ‘of deficiencies, .in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
.reagsonable, possnblhty that: material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
‘program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiency
in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying.schedule of ﬁndmgs and questioned
costs:as-item 2013-7 to be a-material weakness.

A ‘significant deficiency in. internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in -internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program:that is less severe than a material weakness in-internal control. over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those ¢harged with govemnncc We consider the deficiencies in internal
control over compliance described .in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
items 2013-8"and 2013-9 to be significant deficiencies.

. The Parish’s responsw to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit are
described. in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned-costs. The Parish’s responses were
not:subjected to the -auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on the responses.

The purpose of :this report on internal controlgver compliance:is solely to.describe the scope of .our
testing of internal control over comphance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

ort on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133

‘We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each
major- fund, and.the aggregate remaining fund information of the Parish,-as of and for the year-ended
December 31, 2013, and the related notes to-the financial statemients, which collectively" comprise the
Parish’s basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated July 10, 2014, which. contained
unmodified opinions:on those finanicial statements; Our audit was. .conducted for the purpose of forming
opinions on the financial statements that: collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysxs
as required by OMB Cifcular A-133 ‘and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such
information is ‘the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
und:ﬂymg accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the. audmng procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
-additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying:
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial

statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally

accepted in"the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures:of federal awards
‘is firly stated in all material respects ‘in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Otletunid, + Nottwilh

Metairie, Louisiana’
Tuly 10, 2014
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ED DECEMBER 31,2013
) Federal .
Federal Grantor/Pass-Throngh or CFDA Grant Federal
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Nomber Expenditures
U.S; Department of Homeland Security '
Direct . -
FEMA Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Respanse Grant 97.083 EMW-2012-FH-00677  § 1,743,771
Pass - Through Loulsiana Military Department Office
of Homeland Security and Emergency Preparedness .- C o
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance - FEMA 97.036 FEMA-LA™DR1603 31,255,148
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance - FEMA 97.036 FEMA-LA-DR4080 900,391
Urban'Areas Security Initiative 97.008 2010°SS-T0-0043 26,801
‘Urban Areas Security Initiative 97.008 EMW-2012-85-00075-501 39,023
- Emergency Management Performance 97.042 EMW-2012-EP-00042-501 28,678
State Homeland Security Program 97.073 2010-S5-T0-0043 144,368
State Homeland Security Program 97.067 EMW-2011:85-00124:501 26,550
State Homeland Security Program 97.067 EMW-2012-85-00075-501 38,586
Hazard Mitigation Grant 97.039 1603C-087-0007 3,038,464
CCP 2010 97.067 2010-SS-T0-0043 6,173
CCP 2011 97.067 ‘EMW-2011-55-00124-501 3,002
Total'U.S. Department of Homeland Security 37,250,955
U.S. Department of Labor
Pass - Through Louisiana Department of Labor:
WIA Adult Program 17.258 703642 344,731
WIA Youth Activities 17.259 703642 263,969
WIA Dislocated Workers - 17.278 703642 370,410
WIA Dislocated Workers - Urban & Rural NEG 17.260 EM-18056-09-06-A-22 674,291
WIA ARRA 10% 17.258, 17.259, 17.278 703642 75,917
WIA Dislocated Workers - Oil Spill 17.277 EM-20647-10-60-A-22 301,640
WIA Dislocated Workers - Hurricane Isaac 17.277 EM-23701-12-60-A-22 392,756
Totat U.S. Department of Labor 2,423,714
U.S. Department of Transportation
Direct
Federal Tremsit Formula Grant 20.507 999,546
Total 'U.S. Department of Transportation 999,546
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Direct
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 5,655,350
Pass - Through Louisiana Office of Community Development ' i
Community Developmmt Block Grant/Entitlement Grants 14.218 10,594,799
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 16,250,149
U. §. Department of Health & Human Services
Direct
Low Income Home Energy Assistance 93.568 ) 215,432
Cammmmity Services Block Grant 93.569 2010P0081 105,104
Total U.S. Department of Health & Human Services 320,536
U. S; Department of the Interior
Direct i
Coastal Impact Assistance Program (CIAP) 15.668 F12AF(1463 186,569

Total U.S. Department of the Interior
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

186,569

3

57,431,469
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR-ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
General

The accompanying Schedule. of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of the
federal awards-of the St. Bernard Parish Government. The Parish’s reporting entity is defined in
Note-1 to the financial statements for the year-ended December 31, 2013. All federal .awards
received from federal agencies are mcluded on the schedule.

Basis of Presentation

The a¢companying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual
basis of accounting, which is described in Note 1 to the Parish's financial statements for the year-
ended December 31, 2013.

Relationship to Financial Statements

Federal awards are included in the Statement of Activities of the Parish as operating-and capital
grant contributions.

Non-Cash Assistarice

CDL Loan

As described in Note 8 to the financial statements, the Parish had an outstinding Community
Disaster Loan (CFDA No. 97.030) originating in June 2009, payable to the U.S. Department of

‘Homeland Security totaling principal.of $5,000,000 and accriied interest of $403,510 through.

December 2013. In December 2013 FEMA approved the cancellation- of the Parish’s CDL loan,
including principal and accrued interest totaling $5,403,510.

CDBG

‘During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Parish entered into a cooperative endeavor

agreement with the State of Louisiana Office of Community Development and the Louisiana
Road Home:Corporation d/b/a Louisiana Land Trust (LLT), to transferall.the properties within
St. Bernard Parish that were being held by LLT 'to St. Bemard. Parish. Included on the

statement of net position at December 31,, 2013 is.$5,326,500 in land held for sale representing-
lots: throughott St. Bernard Parish. No. dépreciation is being: recorded on.the properties being

held for sale. During the year ended December 31, 2013, no properties were sold by the Parish.
As the lots are sold, CDBG program income will be recogmzed in:the financial statements of the
Parish. The proceeds from sales of the properties:are restricted for use for direct management

costs of the ‘properties. and for recovery related activities in furtherance of the cooperative

endeavor agreement and the eligibility requiremeénts under CDBG guidelines.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDYTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
YEAR-ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013
Subrecipients

Of the federal expenditures presented in-the schedule, the Parish provided CDBG funding of
$609;333 to the'St. Bernard Hospital Service District.

eaiy————
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR-ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
(A) Summary of Aunditor’s Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditdr,’é, report issued: Unmodified’

Internat control over financial reporting:

* Material weakness(es) identified: Yes
» Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
:not considered.to.be material weaknesses: Yes
Noncompliance material to the financial statements: None reported.
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
e Material weakness(es) identified: Yes
¢ Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be'material weaknesses: Yes
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: Modified
Any audit findings which"are reqiired to be reported in accordance
with section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133: Yes

Identification of major programs:

e Disaster Grants-Public Assistance-FEMA (CFDA No. 97.036)
e Community Development Block Grant-(CDBG) (CFDA No. 14.218)
e Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers (CEDA No. 14.871)
o TFederal 'Ifransit Formula Grant (CFDA. No. 20.507) _
¢ FEMA Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response Grant (CFDA No.
97.083) ‘ .
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs: $1.722 944
Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee: No

F—



ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS-AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR-ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

(B) Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with Goyernment

Auditing Standards

2013-1 Accounting and Financial Reporting

Criteria:

Condition:

Context:

Cause:

Effect:

Recommendation:

The Parish should have .systems of internal accounting control, which
ensure the basic financial statements are presented in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles on a timely basis..

The Parish does not have adequate policies, procedures, and related
internal controls to prepare accurate and complete financial statements
on a timely basis.

During.our audit, we noted the Parish performed the reconciliations and
analysis of its significant accounts significantly after year-end, and as a
result, significant adjustments to the financial statements were made
after year-end.

The Parish does not have an appropriate: infrastructure and processes to
prepare accurate and complete financial statements in‘a timely manner in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

The Parish recorded material adjustments to its major accounts to ensure
the financial statements were presented in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

The Parish :should evaluate its accounting: and financial reporting
function. Specifically, the Parish should consider the following:

. Ensure' adequate resources (both number and skill set) are
dedicated to the accounting and financial reporting function.

. Develop and implement policies, procedures; and related controls
over the preparation of the financial statements, including those

presented under full accrual.

e  Assign responsible persons for preparing and reviewing the
financial statements,

e  Address the specific accounting matters discussed in the:schedule
of findings and questioned costs.

¢  Bring accounting up-to-date ‘including timely reconciliations to
enable the timely preparation of financial statements and
appropriate review by the Parish Finance Department.

10
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS -

YEAR-ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013

(B) Findipgs Relating to_the Financial Statements Reported in_Accordance with Government

Auditing Standards

2013-1. Accounting and Financial Remrﬁng {continued)

Management
Response:

The Finance Department is continually reviewing and developing
closeout: procedures, internal control polices and monthly reconciliation
policies in an ‘attempt to improve the annmual close-out process,. the
financial statements, and eliminate the audit finding. The Department is
in-the process devising a written close-out plan‘and attempting to secure
funding to increase staffing. The enhancement of accounting policies,
procedures, and written close-out plan will be based .upon
recommendations of the auditors.

2013-2:Grant Receivable Account Reconciliations

Criteria;

Condition:

Context:

Effect:

Recommendation:

The Parish should have systems of internal accountingcontrol, which
provide for preparation of the financial statéments in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. A receivable subsidiary
ledger should be used to formally‘reconcile and support:the grant and
other receivable balances.

The Parish did not have adequate processes and controls in place to
ensure grant receivable accounts were reconciled at.year-end.

Several. grant: receivable accounts were not reconciled during-the year
and were adjusted as part of the-audit procedures.

The Parish does not have an appropriate infrastructure and processes to

prepare accurae and complete grant receivable account reconciliations
in a timely manner.

The Parish recorded significant adjustments to properly reflect grant and
other receivable balances after year-end.

The Parish should implement procedures and controls to ensure grant
and othier receivable balances.are properly reported on a. timely basis at
year-end and that the general ledger accounts.are reconciled on a timely
basis ‘throughout the year. The account reconciliations should be
reviewed. The review should be documented, and adjustments as
necessary should be recorded to the general ledger.

11




ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR-ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

@) Fmdmgg Relating to the Financial Statements Reported in_Accordance with Government
uditing Standards (continued)

2013-2 Grant Receivable Account Reconciliations (continued)

ement
Response:

The. Parish has asmgned Grant Recelvabies and reconcﬂxahon
Grant Coordinator Contractors. These Coordinators will-further develop
accounting procedures that assure proper accounting ‘and reconciliation
of grant funding;and ‘administration. Smaller grants are maintained by
Parish personne! and we are ib the:process of developing a plan-to train

such personnel to perform routine reconciliation procedures. The

Finance Department has implemented fiirther :internal procedures and
controls to.assure timely and adequate recording and information flow of
all.grants. Additional staffing is required‘in order to reconcile on a more
timely basis. The policies will be based on the recommendations of the
auditors.

.2013-3 Accounts Payable

Criteria:

Condition:

Context:

Cause:

Effect:

Recommendation:

{
The Parish should bave systems -of internal accounting control, which

provide for preparation of the financial statements in:accordance with
U.S. generally accépted accounting principles.

The. Parish did not have adequate processes and controls in place to
ensure payable accounts were reconciled at year end.

‘Several payabl'e-! accounts were not reconciled during the-year and were.
adjusted as part of the audit procedures.

‘The Parish does not have an appropriate infrastructure and. processes. to
prepare accurate: and complete payable account reconciliations in a
timely manner.

The Parish recorded s1gmﬁcant adjustments to properly reflect accounts
payable-after year-end.

The Parish should implement procedures and controls to ensure payable
account balances:are properly reported on a timely basis at year-end-and
that the general ledger accounts are recoriciled on a timely basis
thréu'ghout'the year. The account reconciliations should be reviewed.
The review should be documented, and adjustments as:necessary should
be recorded to'the general ledger.

12
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR-ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

(B) Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Reported in_Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards (continued)

2013-3 Accounts Payable (continued)

Management
Response:

The Parish does have internal control procedures regarding Accounts
Payable accounts incleding aged payable reports, monthly
reconciliations and year end search for unrecorded liabilities. The
existing approval process creates irherent delays and needs to be
refined. Based on the audit comment, the Finance Department will
review all policies'and procedures in an attempt to assure all liabilities
are properly recorded in a timely manner.

20134 Local Government Budget Act

Criteria:

Condition:

Context:

Cause:

Effect:

The Parish adopted .its 2013 operating revenue and expenditure budget
by passage of ordinance. Budgets were:adopted for the general and each
special revenue fund. The Local Government Budget Act, LSA-RS

39:1301 et seq, requires that a local:government amend its budget:when.

actual .expenses are expected to be significantly in excess of budgeted

amounts or 'if achial revenues are expected to be significantly less than:

budgeted amounts.

The Parish did not amend its' adopted budget for the General Fund, the
Consolidated Fire Protection District Number 1 and Number 2, and the
CDBG Disaster Fund when its total actual expenditures exceeded the
total budgeted expenditures by:five percent or more or ‘when the total
actual revenues were less than total budgeted revenues by five percent or
more.

Due to significant adjustments recorded. to the trial balance subsequent
to year-end, the amended budgets approved by the Parish Council were
not in compliance with the state requirement.

The Parish recorded adjustments to the trial balance.subsequent to year-
end as part of the audit process.

The Parish was. not in compliance with the Local Government Budget
Act.

13




ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR-ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

(B) Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with Government
Auditirig Standards (continued)

. _2013-4 Local Government Budget Act {continued) -

Recommendation:

Management’s
Response:

We recommend that. the Finance Director or other qualified Finance

Department personne] assess the effect of accruals in monitoring budget
to actual comparisons on-a regular basis to provide timely information to
the Parish Council so'that proper budget amendments can be made..

The Finance: Department does have adequate and proper procedures in
their financial system to adhere to the requirements of the LA Budget
Act. The Local Budget is being monitored regularly by specific
personnel and adjustments are.administered as required. Routine testmg
is performed to determine compliance relating to the 5% margin of
error. The CDBG and Disaster recovery budgets were initially adjusted
at year end to meet comphance regulations. There were two:conditions
that substantially contributed to this finding. They were the recording of
Revenue Anticipation Loan proceeds as revenue at the fund level and the
recording of land donated t6-the Parish by the Louisiana Land Trust
being recorded as revenue at.the fund level. .Also, contributing to the
non-compliance was the:amount of year-end adjustments described in
the audit finding. The Parish is reviewirg accounting procedures and
policies to -reduce the amount of adjusting entries and increase the
accuracy of year end balances. The Finance department: contmually
presents necessary budget amendments to the Parish Council.in-a timely
manner to remain‘in compliance with the Local Government Budget:Act.

2013-5 Misappropriation of Assets

Criteria:

Condition:

Context:.

The Parish should have systems of internal accounting control, which
ensure the safeguarding of the Parish’s assets.

The Parish did not have appropriate policies:and procédures in place.for
the proper recording and. monitoring of cash receipts that are not
received at the main Parish offices.

During thie year ended December 31, 2013, the Parish finance staff

identified inusual financial activity that occurred separately within' the.

Parish’s transit office and the office of the St. Bernard Civic
Center. The Parish reported the activity to the Louisiana Legislative
Auditor. The Louisiana Legislative Auditor’s office is currently
performing proceduresrelating to both of these activities. The ultimate
outcome .of the procedures is not known and the Louisiana Legislative
Auditor has not issued any reports as-of the date of this report.

14
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVE NT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR-ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013

®) Fmdmgs Relating to_the Financial Stateménts Reported in Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards (continued)

2013-5 Misapnropriation'of ‘Assets (continued)

Cause: The Parish did not perform monitoring of cash. receipts ‘at*the transit
office or.the Civic Center prior to the 2013 year.

Effect: Assets of the Parish may have been misappropriated from the Transit
department and the Civic Center.

Recommendation: The Parish should ensure appropriate intérnal controls over cash
currency-amounts:maintained for the Parish.. The Parish should ensure
cash receipts that are decentralized (not through the Parish building) are
monitored and have appropriate internal controls.

‘Management

Response: The Parish has reviewed all of the circumstances related to the potentlal
misappropriation of cash receipts.at its’ ‘Transit office and the: St. Bernard
Civic Center. Procedures and oversight. have beén adjusted to monitor.
cash’activities and'assure that incidents of this nature do not happen in
the future. In further response to the audit finding, cash management
procedures-have been implemented at both facilities to incorporate daily
and weekly reporting to the Finance Department, lock boxes, and bank
drop off policies to assure all cash is mairtained properly.

2013-6 Oversight and Management of Recovery-Driven Federal Expenditures

Criteria: A sound system of internal controls over the recovery  effort would
assign the responsibility forthe oversight and management of:the effort,
with timelines and benchmarks used for assessment,

Condition: Beginning in late 2005 and continuing through 2013, the Parish has
received significant federal financial assistance .in-the-form of Fedéral
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) grants to fund the massive
recovery effort to rebuild and repopulate :St. Berhard Parish. following
Hurricane Katrina. The Parish has outsourced the oversight and
management of the entire recovery process to a third party -administrator
that bas acted with the authority of-the Parish to approve recovery
expenditures :and file' the required. documents for-réimbursement from~
the State of Louisiana Governor's Office. of Homeland Security and.
Emergency Preparedness (GOHSEP). As the recovery process has
wound down, GOHSEP engaged an outside firm to perform a pre-
closeout assessment of the recovery fnndmg process. This assessment
has raised questions. regarding the process to- -approve.and account for
‘recovery expenditures and the application process for reimbursement.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR-ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013

(B) Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Reported in Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards (continued)

Condition:

Context:

Cause:

Effect:

Recommendation:

Management's

Response:

Several projects had significant. cost overruns beyond the federal
obligated funding amounts. Numerous projects have not been closed out
because of lingering questions surrounding the eligibility of costs
submitted..

Project' Worksheets (PWs) have not been closed out in a timely manner.
The outside firm's pre-closeout assessment noted the following:

There has been a'lack of staff conducting precloseout tasks necessary to
expedite efficient closeout of the PWs in a timely manner. There have
been limited personnel (restricted to the one contractor) with detailed
understanding of the PW status and process.

The Parish's document retention practices and use of SharePoint to
maintain documentation is effective, but their PW/grants management
database has under-performed. Some. data integrity issues were noted

-within the system, largely driven by current design and configuration

flaws. The necessary data is largely available, but not effectively
configured for management's use or decision making.

St. Bernard Parish personnel were not empowered to provide:oversight
or maintain accountability over-the recovery effort. Disaster recovery
accountability has largely been relinquished to the third party
administrator.

The Parish may face a shortfall of funding and potential liability &s it

closes out the recovery process.

‘The Parish should follow the Pre-Closeout Readiness Steps and other
recommendations of the .outside firm documented ‘in its pre-closeout
assessment.

The oversight of FEMA related reimbursements and expenditures and
the resulting project closeout has been an enormous undertaking that has
spanned across three’ administrations. The Parish :is currently in the
process of contracting with a third party consulting firm to manage and
administer the closeout procedures. Administratioi will continue to
coordinate with the third party, when contracted, to assure that all
project worksheets are closed out properly, accurately, and timely.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND UESTIONED COSTS

YEAR:-ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

(C) Findings and Questioned Costs — Major Award Programs Audit

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
14.871; Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers

2013-7 Finzncial Management Review Performed by HUD

Critéria:

‘Condition:

Cause:

HUD regulations require the following: (1) Public Housing Agency
(PHA) prog'rafn receipts in excess of current needs must be promptly
invested in accordance with good cash management; (2) PHA must
maintdin complete and accurate accounts and records; these records
must be in' the:form required by HUD, and (3) PHA's are required to

submit- their year-end financial information to HUD through the,

Financial Assessment System (FASS).

The Quality Assurance Division (QAD). of the U.SS. Department of
Housmg and Urban Development issuéd a Financial Management
Review Report on.the St. Bernard Parish Housing Authority (SBPHA)
dated May 21, 2012. The: HUD report identified four ﬁndmgs

summarized as follows (1) SBPHA's- total cash and investments as of

December-31, 2011 were insufficient to support its:Net Restricted Assets
(NRA) as calculated by QAD by $2, 081,474; (2) SBPHA underreported
its NRA balance as of December 31, 2011 by $1:203,676; (3). SBPHA
did not maintain .complete and accurate records .of administrative

.expenses for 2011; and (4) SBPHA failed to submit audited financial

reports to HUD using the FASS for the fiscal years-ended 2007-2010.

(1) The Parish-continued to receive funding for the Housing, Assistance
Program (HAP) during the period the- SBPHA was closed in the amount
of approximately $1,708,179. However, neither the SBPHA nor the
Parish. were able to document where the Housing 'Choice. Voucher
(HCY) HAP funds:received. during that period. of time ‘were deposited.

HUD offset a portion of these funds in 2009, however the SBPHA.

received Disaster Housing Assistance Program (DHAP) to HCY funding

for this same time- period which the SBPHA used to fund both the DHAP

to HCY and the regular voucher program. (2) SBPHA failed to properly
calculate their NRA balance. However, due to the condition of the
financial records and the lack of supporting documentation QAD was
unable to 1dent1fy the exact cause. (3) SBPHA financial records were not
maintained in accordance with HUD reqmrements (4) The Perish has
had a government-wide audit conducted each year but has failed to
Submit the SBPHA component unit required audited Financial Data
schedules to FASS.
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ST.BERNARD PARISH GOE' RNMENT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND-QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR:-ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Effect: (1) As a'result of improper tracking and use of HUD;funds, the. SBPHA
is in violation of the- appropnatlon law, and such illegal uses of Iransfers
can result in sanctions and possiblé breach of the contract. The . mis-
representation of funds failed to provide HUD with informastion that
would allow early intervention to avoid potential shortfalls resuiting in
possible termination of participants; (2) By failing to maintain complete
and accurate accounts-and other records, HUD was not supplied with
information useful in:determining the NRA balance; '(3) SPBHA failed
‘to provide HUD with an accurate” reflectlon of the true administrative
expenses for 2011 in the -administration ‘of the: ‘program; (4) By failing to
submit the fiscal year-end financial information to HUDthrough FASS,
the SBPHA failed to prov1de HUD with information useful in
determining annual.funding, administrative expenses, NRA balance, and
its actual financial position.

Recommendation:  We recommend-the. SBPHA follow all correction actions provided in the
financial Management Review Report issued by.the QAD of HUD.

Management'’s

Response: The Parish engaged an independent Certified Public Accounting firm to
‘perform .an forensic accounting' of the time period from late 2005
‘through mid-2012 for the. purpose of. establishing the correct Net
Restricted Balarice (NRA) 100% of the deposits. received from HUD
were traced back to the appropriate bank account to facilitate reconciling
back'to the appropriate Net Restricted Asset balance. at December 31,
2011. It was determined that the NRA balance was understated and the
deficit amount was immediately transferred from the HAP'
Administrative Fee-account to the HAP Rental Subsidy account. The
HUD QAD office later confirmed the appropriateness of the transfer to
the HAP Rental Subsidy account. A Certified Public Accounting firm
has- been engaged to file the delinquent FASS report and the SBPHA in
compliance. The Finance Department ‘will continue to review the
finding and propose actions necessary to correct any.-deficiencies.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

(C) Findings and Questioned Costs — Major Award P rams Audit continued)

YEAR-ENDED DE ER 31 2013

U.S. Department of Homeland Sec
97.036:_Disaster Grants — Public Assistance - FEMA

2013-8 Property Records Missing Req uiréd Grant Information

Criteria:

Condition:

Cause:

fiect:

Recommendation:

Management’s
Resm_‘n'se:

Property records should contain description (including:serial number or

. other identification number), source, who holds title, acquisition date

and cost, percentage. of federal participation in the cost, location,
condition, and disposition data.

The Parish failed to identify source, percentage of federal participation
in the cost, Jocation, and condition of property and equipment purchased
with federal funds on the property records report.

The Finance Department was unaware of this:requirement.

Assets purchased with' federal fundg are not tracked as such, therefore
should the assets be disposed of, the proper-disposal procedures for
federally purchased assets would not be followed.

The Finaace Director or other qualified Finance Department’ personnel
should retain all required information on the property records report‘for
property and equipment purchased with:federal funds.

The Parish.is in the process of devising.a plan to identify both, assets
purchased previotis-and subsequent to-2013, where there were federally
assisted funding involved in the asset's acquisition. The Parish is
currently in the process, of acquiring an Asset Tracking Program-which
will benefit severil departments in the tracking of its assets. This
process will be an integral part of the increased staffing that will be
responsible for the entire fixed asset management recording and tracking
system.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS UESTIONED.COSTS

YEAR-ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

(C) Findings and Questioned Costs — Major Award Programs Audit (continued

U.S. Department-of Transporta ﬁon,
20.507: Federal Transit Formula Grant

2013-9 FTA Davis-Bacon Act
Criteria: Non-federal eﬁﬁﬁes shall include in"théir construction contracts subject

Condition:

ause:’

Effect:

Recommendation:

M_ anagement’s

onse:

to- Davis-Bacon Act a requirement that the contractor or subcontractor
comply with the requirements of the Davis-Bacon Act and the DOL
regulations. This includes 2 requirement for ‘the contractor or

subcontractor: to'submit to the non-Federal entity weekly,:for each week.

in which any contract work is performed, a.copy of the payroll and a
statement of compliance (certified payroll).

The Parish.did. not document testing compliance with the requirements
of the Davis-Bacon Act of individual contractors which the contractor
did not provide the Parish with a certified payroll related to the invoices.

Documentation procedures -established to monitor compliance of

individual contractors and subcontractors were not followed in-2013.

The Parish cannot provide reasonable assurance that  individual
construction contractors and subcontractors are complying with the
requirements of the Davis-Bacon Act.

Monitoring controls should be.established and documented to provide
assurance that procedures are being followed. The Parish should review
the process to ensure compliance is bemg followed.

The Parish is diligent in regard to conformmg with the Davis-Bacon act
where féderal funding is involved in pro;ect ‘development. This
particular project was carried over fromthe previous administration and
the Parish's in-house project manager assigned to the pro_]ect left the
employment of the Parish. The in-house project manager thit was
assigned the project halfway through its completion was unaware. that:all
of the statirtory réquirements had not been-met. The Parish's policy is to
include in the advertisement for any project services thie statutory
requirements-associated with that project so that the Contractors can bid
the project appropriately.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

YEAR-ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013

Financial Statement Findings

2012-01 Accounting and Financial Reporting

Condition:

Current Status:

The Parish does not have adequate policies, procedures, -and related internal

‘controls to -prepare accurate and complete financial statements on a timely

basis.

Not resolved. See item 2013-1.

2012-02 Grant Receivable Account Reconciliations

Condition:

Current Status:

The Parish did not have adequate processes and controls:in' place to ensure
grant receivable: accounts were reconciled'at year-end. The.Parish does not
maintain subsidiary ledgers or account reconciliations of grant,receivable
accounts throughout the year.

Not resolved. See’item 2013-2.

'2012-03 Capital Assets

Condition:

Current Status:

“The Parish did not have adequate policies, procedures, and internal. controls
in place to ensure all capital assets were fairly stated in its -financial
statements on a timely.basis. A

Resolved.

2012-04 Accounts Pazable.

dition:

Current Status:

The Parish did not have adequate processes and controls in place to ensure
expenditures were.reported timely in the proper period.

Not resolved. See item 2013-3.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

YEAR-ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Financial Statement Findings (continued)

2012-05 Consolidated Cash Account

Condition:

Current Status:

The Parish didnot have adequate processes and controls in place to ensure

cash balances'or borrowings from other funds were properly reported on ‘the
financial statements.

Resolved.

2012-06 Segregation of Duties over Disbursements

Condition:

Current Status:

The-Parish did not have adequate segregation of duties over disbursements
during the year-ended December 31, 2012.

Resolved.

2012-07 Local Government Budget Act

Condition:

Current Status:

The Parish did not amend its adopted budget for the General Fund when its
total actual expenditres exceeded the total budgeted expenditures by five
percent or more.

Not resolved. See item 2013-4.

2012-08 Misappropriation of Assets

Condition;’

Current Status:

On or about January 31, 2012, certain assets (bleachers) that were constructed

of metal material were sold as “scrap” metal and the proceeds were not.

remitted to the Parish. There was no authority by the Parish or Parish
management to:sell the bleachers. The bleachers had a cost of approximately
$100,000. On or about' May 1,-2012, the rental proceeds of approximately
$1,100 from the recreational boat facility operated by the Parish were taken
home by an employee for safe keeping. The employee’s home was
vandalized,.and the renta] proceeds were stolen.

Resolved.
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ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

YEAR-ENDED DECEMBER 31,2013

Financidl Statement Findings (continued)
2012-09 WIA Special Revenue Fund Trial Balance and Activi

Condition: During our audit, we noted the trial balance for the Workforce Investment Act .
(WIA) special reévenue fund was not maintained dunng the year'by the Parish,
and-account reconciliations were not reviewed on-a timely basis by the Parish.
The activity for the WIA program is maintained in a general ledger that is
outside the Parish’s accounting ‘software and not subject to the oversight of
the Parish Finance Department.

-Current Status: Resolved.

2012-10 Oversight:and Management of Recovery-Driven Federal Expenditures

Conditijon: Beginning in late 2005 and:continuing through 2012, the Parish hasireceived
significant federal financial assistance in the form. of Federal Emergency-
Management Agency (FEMA) grants to fund the-massive recovery effort to
rebuild.and.repopulate St..Bernard Parish following Hurricane Katrina. The
Parish has outsourced the oversight and management of the entire recovery
process to a thifd party administrator that has.acted with thie authority of the
Parish to approve recovery expenditures and file the. required documents for
reimburserhent from the State of Louisiana Governor's Office of Homeland
-Security and Emergency Preparedness {(GOHSEP). As' the:recovery -process
has wound down, GOHSEP engaged an outside firm to perform a pre-
closeout assessment of the recovery funding process. This assessment has
raised questions regarding the process to approve and account for recovery
expenditures.and the-application process for reimbursement. Several projects
had:$ignificant cost overruns:beyond the federal obligated funding-amounts.
Numerous:- projects’have not been closed.out because of lingering.questions.
surrounding the eligibility of costs submitted.

Current Status; Not resolved. See item 2013-6.

2012-11 Timely Submissions of Audit Report to Legislative-Auditor

Condition: The-Parish did not meet the June 30, 2013 deadline for reporting to the State
of Louisiana. The Parish did request'and réceived an extension of time until
July 31,2013 from the Legislative Auditor to file its financial statements.

Current Status: Resolved.
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. BERNARD PARISH GOVE A

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

YEAR-ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Single Audit Findings

inancial
Choice Vouchers)

-Condition: The Quality Assurance Division (QAD) of the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development issued a Financial Management Review Report on
the St. Bernard Parish Housing Authority (SBPHA) dated May 21, 2012.
The HUD report identified four findings summarized as follows: (1)
SBPHA's total cash and investments as of December 31, 2011 were
msuﬁﬁclent to suppoit its Net Restricted Assets (NRA) as calculated by
QAD by $2,081,474; (2) SBPHA inderreported its NRA balance as of
December 31, 2011 by $1,203,676; (3) SBPHA did -not maintain complete
and .accurate’ records. of administrative expenses for 2011; and (4) SBPHA
failed to submit audited financial reports'to HUD using the FASS for the
fiscal years ended-2007-2010.

Current Status: Not resolved. See item 2013-7.

Public Assistance - FEMA) -

Condition: The Parish failed to idéntify source, percentage of federal participation in the
cost, location, and condition of property and équipment. purchased with
fedéral funds on the property records report.

Current Status: Not resolved. See itemn 2013-8.
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To the Parish Council
St. Bemard Parish Government

In planning and performing our audit of the-financial statements of St. Bernard Parish Government-(the
Parish)'as of and for the year ended. December 31, 2013, in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted ‘in- the United States of. America, we considered the Parish’s ‘internal control over financial
reporting (internal control) as a'basis for designing our audit procedures for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the financial statements. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Parish’s'internal control.

However, during our audit we became aware of several matters as listed in Attachment I that are
opportunities for:strengthening internal controls and operating efficiency. We previously teported on the
Parish’s intemal control in our Government Auditing Standards letter dated July 10, 2014. This letter
does not affect our report dated July 10,2014 on the financial staternents of the Parish.

We wili review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have discussed many
of these comments-and suggestions with management and we will be pleased to discuss-them in further
detail at your convenience.

The Parish’s written responses to the comments identified in, Attachment I and Attachment II have not
been subjected to the axditing procedures applied in the audit’of the:financial statements-and accordingly;
we express no opinion on them.

This report is'intended solely for the information and use of management, the Parish President, Parish
Council, the State of Louisiana and the Legislative Auditor’s Office and is not intended to be and should _
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, tnder Louisiana Revised Statute - i
24:513, this report is-distributed by the Legislative Auditor as-a public document. . !

Pttthunile + Nttt

Metairie, Louisiana
July 10,2014

30th Floor - Energy Centre = 1100 PoydrasStreet = New Orleans, LA 70165-3000 - Tel: 800.201.7332
Orie Galleria BIvdL,Suite 2100 « Metairie, LA70001 «  Tel:'504.837.5990 + Fax: 504.834.3609




ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
MANAGEMENT LETTER COMMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

1013-101 Information Technology Access controls

Observatlon We.observed the following iteins regarding information technology access during our
general controls.procedures.

The'Parish does not have a formal process to administer user access for new hires.and removal of

‘access for terminated employees.

The Parish does monitor user access on an informal basis throughout the year.
Non-Information Technology personnel iave “Administrator” access to the accounting system.

"Password complexity requirements are not enabled on Windows

There are no separate password controls established for Sage and users are not required to change
their passwords on a periodic basis'.l In addition, if users forget their passwords, a new user
account is created since the employee’s account cannot be reset when a password is forgotten.

Recommendation: The Parish should consider the following recommendations relating ‘to access
controls over the information technology systems of the Parish

Management Response: The TT Department agrees with the comments and recommendations regarding

Management should consider formalizing the-user access administration process including-new

‘hires, transfers,. and terminations to all information systems used.

Management should adopt a policy for :formal review of Parish employees' access righits on a
periodic basis throughout the year and document the review.

Administrator-access rights should be limited to Inforthation Technology personnel . who do not
have end user access in the system. If this is not efficient, management should adopt monitoring
controls in'place over employees with “Administrator” dccess.

Management ‘should enforce.complexity requirements;on Windows. In addition, passwords to
Sage should be changes on a periodic basis. Management should also discuss with the software
vendors options for the Parish to be able to reset employees’ passwords when needed:

formalizing the iser access administration process. The department will be working with the HR

.Department and Finance department to.develop a standard notification procedure for hires, transfers and,
terminations to all information systems used. In regard to formalizing the review of Parish employee’s -

access rights, ‘the.IT Department periodically monitors :and reviews validation of system user access.
Presently, the IT Department does have monitoring controls in place which allows the administrators of
the system to manage and track the organization’s audit trail. Regarding the complexity requirements on

L et temwede—aaa—



ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT

'MAN'AGEMENT LETTER COMMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

2013-101 Information Technology Access controls (continued)

Windows, we have.implemented it on all applications with the exception of Sage. Sage software vendor
has been contacted by management to discuss the options for the Parish to be.able to.reset. employee’s
passwords-and they indicated that the only way to do that is- by changing the System Preferences to ‘Use
Windows-Authentication’. The Pros and Cons of using Windows Authentication has been considered and
IT has determined that the Sage application will continue to use its inherent user access authentication
guidelines.

2013-102 Escheatment of Un-negotiated items

Observation:: The Parish’s policy and procedures do -not provide for routine review of items for
escheatment to the State of Louisiana. We noted a number of items on the Parish’s bank reconciliation
which-should be reviewed for escheatment.

Recommendation: The Parish should implement processes and procedures so that outstanding un-
negotiated checks are escheated to the State of Louisiana on a timely basis.

‘Management Response: The Finance Department is in agreement with this comment. The Parish is.in,
the process of devising a.plan to semi-annually evaluate and submit unclaimed payments to the proper
trustees. The-Finance Department evaluated the outstanding uncleared.checks and made inquiries of the
appropriate-state agency regarding the procedures to rectify this situation. The Parish was informed of-the
necessary procedures which proved to nat be cost beneficial because of the number of low denomination
checks. We.are continuing our planning in regard to Escheatment.



ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
MANAGEMENT LETTER COMMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

2013-103 Use of Hand Scanner Software

Observation: The Parish requires most employees to use the Microix hand scanner time-keeping system
to track time worked in a day. Certain departments (34" Judicial, Transit, Civic Center and Registrar of
Voters) do not have access to the hand scanners and currently utilize manual time sheets.

Recommendation: We recommend the Parish provide access to the Microix hand scanper.time-keeéping
system for all applicable employees so that internal controls over payroll processing would be improved.

Management Response: The Administration is in agreement with the recommendation of implementing
an across-the-board requirement for all applicable personnel to be required to substantiate their hours
worked through the Microix hand scanner timekeeping system. Two of the four Departments in.question
have three or less employees and the implementation of a hand scanning system would not. be cost
beneficial, however, the Parish plans on installing these when funding allows.




.ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
MANAGEMENT LETTER COMMENTS - PRIOR YEAR

'FOR'THE YEAR ENDED. DECEMBER 31, 2013

2012:101 Tforimation Technology. Access.controls.

Condition: Wé observed the following items- regarding information technology access: dunng our general
conkols procedures.

e The Parish:does not have:a-formal process to administer user access for new hires and removal of
access-for terminated employees.

e  The Parish does monitor user. access-on an informal basis throughout the year.

e _ Non-Information Technology personnel have “Administrator” access.to'the: accountmg system.

e Password complexity requirements are ‘not énabled. on Windows

e  Thére.afeno separate password controls establishied for Sage arid useis are not Tequired to change
their. passwords ‘on a periodic basis. In addition, if users forget;their passwords;-a:new user
account isicreated since the employee’s account cannot be'reset when a password is forgotten:

Current Status: "Not resolved. See:2013-101.

2012-102 Escheatment of Un-negotiateditems

Condition: We noted a:uinber of items oni thé Parish’s bank reconiliation which:should, be reviewed.,
for escheatment. The Parish shoild Mplement [processes: and procedures 'so that oiitstanding, .un-
negotiated cliecks'are escheated to the.State of Louisiana on'a'timely basis.

Current Status: Not resolved. See 20132102,

iOli-lﬁ:?’Use of Hand Scanner Software

:Condiﬁon The Panshreqmres most employees to use the <Microix’liand scanner ﬁme‘-keeping systEm to

utlllze manugal, Ume sheels We recommend the Pirish prov1de accessito: the Microix hand.scanner time-
keeping system for all apphcable employees ‘so that internal: controls*over payroll processing would be
.lmproved

‘Current Status: Not resolved. See 2013-103.




" ST. BERNARD PARISH GOVERNMENT
MANAGEMENT LETTER COMMENTS

FOR THE YEAR'ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Condition: We:observed that accourits,payable on construction projects irl progress were not consistently
‘recorded timely during the year. All expenditures incurred as-of the end of a-period should be recorded so
that: coststo date on . construction' projects in progress reflect all work performed on the project. We
‘recommend that alliinvoices:recéived-after.the end of the reporting:period that.apply: to work-done before
‘the. period end; be recorded as- construction. in progress. This will result in more .accurate monthly
finarcial statements, ‘will. keep Parish officials Current on. the:progress of:the construction projects, will
assist the:Parish in ldenhfymg potentla.l budget variances, and may hlghhght a problém aréa; earlier:so that
corrective action can'be'taken.

Current:Status: -Resolved

'2011-17 Interim Financial Statements:

Condition: Interiin financial statements :are’ provided to the. public through the Parish Governments
‘website. It: appears from the large:number of year-end adjustment that the Parish’s’ interim financial
statements-did not'include all the necessary adjustments to;provide:accurate monthly financial statements
We :recommend that: the: Parish ‘review and .improve the monthly closing process:fo allow for more
accurate:monthly financial statements.

Ciirrent Statns:  Not resolved. See finding'2013-1.

2011-20 Monthly Reconciliation for Grant Activi

‘Condition: Tt was noted that several grants; managed by thirdparty grant managers, are not. bemg
reconciling: on a.monthly. basis. 'We recommend all ‘grant. activity performed by a ﬂnrd ‘party grant
‘manager be reviewed and reconciled on'a monthly. baSIS_

.Current Status: Not resolved. See finding 2013-6




